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ATLIBO & ASSOCIATES LL

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
To the Members of Chhaya Prakashani Private Limited
Report on the Ind AS Financial Statements

We have andited the accompanying IndAs financial statements of Chhaya Prakashani Private Limited (“the
Company”), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2018, the Statement of Profit and Loss, including
the statement of Other Comprehensive Income, the Cash Flow Statement and the Statement of Changes in Equity
for the year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting peolicies and other explanatory information.

Management’s Responsibility for the IndAs Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is respensible for the matters stated in Sectien 134(5) of the Companies Act,
2013 (“the Act”) with respect to the preparation of these Ind AS financial statements that give a true and fair view
of the financial position, financial performance including other comprehensive income, cash flows and changes
i equity of the Company in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the
Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) specified under section 133 of the Act., read with the Companies (Indian
Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended. This responsibility also includes maimtenance of adequate
accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company
and for preventing and detecting frauds and other frregularities; selection and application of appropriate
accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and the design,
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial control that were operating effectively for ensuring
the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the IndAs
finaneial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud
Of eI7ot.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these IndAs financial statements based on our audit. We have taken
into account the provisions of the Act, the accounting and auditing standards and matters which are required to be

_included in the audit report under the provisions of the Act and the Rules made thereunder. We conducted our

audit of the standalone IndAs financial statements in accordance with the Standards on Auditing, issued by the
Institte of Chartered Accountants of India, as specified under Section 143(10) of the Act. Those Standards require
that we comply with ethical requiremerts and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the
financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the
risks of material misstaternent of the IndAs financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those
risk assessments, the auditor considers internal financial control relevant to the Company’s preparation of the
[ndAs financial statements that give a true and fair view in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of the accounting estimates made by the Company’s Directors, as well as evaluating the overall
presentation of the IndAs financial statements. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the IndAs financial statements.

Opinion

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the IndAs financial
statements give the information required by the Act in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in
conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at
March 31, 2018, its profit including other comprehensive income, its cash flows and the changes in equity for the
year ended on that date.
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Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by the Companies (Aunditor’s report) Order, 2016 (“the Order™) issued by the Central Government
of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Act, we give in the Annexure 1 a statement on the
matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order.

2. Asrequired by section 143 (3) of the Act, we report that:

(@) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge and
belief were necessary for the purpose of our andit;

() In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Comp'any so far as it appears
from our examination of those books;

{c) The Balance Sheet, Statement of Profit and Loss including the Statement of Other Corﬁprehensive Income,
the Cash Flow Statement and Statement of Changes in Equity dealt with by this Report are in agreement with
the books of account;

(d) Tn our opinion, the aforesaid Ind AS financial statements comply with the Accounting Standards specified
under section 133 of the Act, read with Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended;

(e) On the basis of written representations received from the directors as on March 31, 2018, and taken on record
by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on March 31, 2018, from being appointed
as a director in terms of section 164 (2) of the Act;

(f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the Company and
the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in “Annexure 2” to this repor;

{g) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule 11 of the
Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our information and according
to the explanations given to us:

i, The Company does not have any pending litigations which would impact its financial position.

ii.  The Company did not have any tong-term contracts including derivative contracts for which there were
any material foreseeable losses.

ifii, There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and Protection
Fund by the Company.

For S.R. Batliboi & Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAT Firm Registration Number: 101049W/E300(304

per Yogesh Midha
Partner
Membership Number: 34941

Place: New Delhi
Date: 22 May 2018
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Annexure 1 referred to in paragraph 1 of report on other legal and regulatory requirements

Re: Chhaya Prakashani Private Limited (‘the Company®)

@ @

(b)

{©)

(if)

The Company has maintained proper records showing full particutars, including quantitative details
and situation of property, plant and equipment. '

All fixed assets were physical verified by the management in the previous year in accordance with
the planned programme of verifying them once in two years which, in our opinion, is reasonable
having regards to the size of the Company and nature of its assets. No material discrepancies were
noticed on such verification.

According to the information and explanations given by the management, there are no immovable
properties, included in property, plant and equipment of the company and accordingly, the
requirements under paragraph 3(i)(c) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

The management has conducted physical verification of inventory at reasonable interval during the
year and no material discrepancies noted on such verification. Inventories lying with third parties
have been confirmed by them on various date and no material discrepancies were noticed in respect
of such confirmation.

(i} (a) According to the information and explanation given to us, the Company has not granted any loan

(iv)

)

v

(viiy{a)

(b)

secured or unsecured to companies, firms, Limited Liability Partnerships or other parties covered in
the register maintained under section 189 of the Companies Act, 2013. Accordingly, the provision of
clause ifi(a), (b) and (c) of the Order are not applicable to the Company and hence not commented
apon.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanation given to us, there are no loan,
investment guarantees and securities granted in respect of which provisions of section 185 and 186
of the Companies Act 2013 are applicable and hence not commented upon.

The Company has not accepted any deposits within the meaning of Sections 73 to 76 of the Act and
the Companies (Acceptance of Deposits) Rules, 2014 (as amended). Accordingly, the provisions of
clause 3(v) of the Order are not applicable.

To the best of our knowledge and as explained, the Central Government has not specified the
maintenance of cost records under clause 148(1) of the Companies Act 2013, for the
product/services of the Company.

The Company is generally regular in depositing with appropriate authorities undisputed statutory
dues including provident fund, employees’ state insurance, income-tax, service tax/goods and service
tax, value added tax, cess and other material statutory dues applicable to it. The provisions relating to
excise duty and duty of custom are not applicable to the Company.

According to the information and explanations given to us, no undisputed amounts payable in
respect of income-tax, provident fund, service tax/goods and service tax, value added tax, cess and
other undisputed statutory dues were outstanding, at the period end, for a period of more than six
months firom the date they became payable.
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{¢) According to the information and explanation given to us, there are no dues of income tax, sales-tax,

(viti)

(ix)

(x)

(xi)

(xiii}

(xiv)

(xv)

o (xvi)

service tax, excise duty, value added tax and cess which have not been deposited on account of any
dispute.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given by the management, the
Company has not defaulted in repayment of loans or borrowings to a financial institution or bank.
The Company does not have any dues to in respect of debenture holders or government.

According to the information and explanations given by the management, the Company has not
raised any money way of initial public offer / further public offer / debt instruments and term loans
hence, reporting under clause (ix) is not applicable to the Company and hence not commented upon.

Based upon the audit procedures performed for the purpose of reporting the true and fair view of the
financial statements and according to the information and explanations given by the management, we
report that no fraud on or by the officers and employees of the Company has been noticed or
reported during the year.

According to the information and explanation given by the management, the managerial
remuneration has been paid/provided in accordance with the requisite approval mandate by
provision of Section 197 read with schedule V to the Companies Act 2013.

In our opinion, the Compary is not a nidhi company. Therefore, the provisions of clause 3(xi) of the
order are not applicable to the Company and hence not commented upon.

According to the information and explanations given by the management, transactions with the
related parties are in compliance with section 177 and 188 of Companies Act, 2013 where applicable
and the details have been disclosed in the notes to the financial statements, as required by the
applicable accounting standards.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on an overall examination of the
balance sheet, the company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of shares or
fully or partly convertible debentures during the year under review and hence, reporting
requirements under clause 3(xiv) are not applicable to the company and, not commented upon.

According to the information and explanations given by the management, the Company has not
entered into any non-cash transactions with directors or persons connected with him as referred to in
section 192 of Companies Act, 2013,

According to the information and explanations given to us, the provisions of section 45-1A of the
Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934 are not applicable to the Company.

+ For S.R. Batliboi & Associates LLP

7 Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm registration number: 101049W/E300004

Partmer

per Yogesh Midha
Membership No.: 946491

Place: New Dethi

Date: 22 May 2018
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ANNEXURE 2 TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT OF EVEN DATE ON THE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF CHHAY A PRAKASHANI PRIVATE LIMITED

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies
Act, 2013 (“the Act”) :

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of Chhaya Prakashani Private Limited
(“the Company”) as of March 31, 2018 in conjunction with our audit of the financial statements of the Cotmpany
for the year ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s Management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls based on
the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential
components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial
Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. These responsibilities include the design,
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for
ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, incliding adherence to the Company’s policies, the
safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and etrors, the accuracy and completeness of the
accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Companies
Act, 2013.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over financial reporting
with reference to these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financiat Controls Over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note”) and the
Standards on Auditing as specified under section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to
an audit of internal financial controls and, both issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. Those
Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit
to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting with
reference to these financial statements was established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively
in all materia} respacts.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial
controls over financial reporting with reference to these financial statements and their operating effectiveness.
Our audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal
financial controls over financial reporting with reference to these financial statements, assessing the risk that a
material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control
based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment
of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion on the internal financial controls over financial reporting with reference to these financial statements.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting With Reference to these Financial
Statements

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting with reference to these financial statements isa
process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the
preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepied accounting
principles. A company's internal financial control over financial reporting with reference to these financial
statements includes those policies and procedures that {1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable
detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide
reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are
being made only in accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide
reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of
gfthep financial statements.

P i
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Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Conirols Over Financial Reporiing With Reference to these
Financial Statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting with reference to these
financial statements, including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material
misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the
internal financial controls over financial reporting with reference to these financial statements to future periods
are subject to the tisk that the internal financial control over financial reporting with reference to these financial
statements may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the
policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, adequate internal financial controls over financial
reporting with reference to these financial statements and such internal financial controls over financia: reporting
with reference to these financial statements were operating effectively as at March 31, 2018, based on the internal
control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of
internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting
issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

For S.R. Batliboi & Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration Number: 101049W/E300004

per Yogesh Midha
Partner
Membership Number: 94941

Place of Signature: New Delhi
Date: 22 May 2018




Chhaya Pralkashani Private Limited
CIN: U22122WB2006PTC111821
Balance Sheet as at 31 March 2018

Qo<

ICAI Firm Registration No, 101049W/K300004
Chartered Accountants

per Yogesh Midha
Partner
Membership No.: 94941

DIN:00054015

Place : New Delhi
Date : 22 May 2018

(T in Million)
Notes - Asat As at As at
31 March 2018 31 March 2017 1 April 2016
Assets
Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment 3 8.33 10.45 16.26
Intangible assets 4 5.68 2.4 3.46
Intangible assets under development - 1.83 -
Financial assets
- Investments 5A 3.40 3.40 2.25
- Loans . 5C 3.98 3.37 89.84
Other non-current assets 7 0.03 0.04 0.04
Deferred tax assets (net) 8 - 2.44 2.82
Total non-current assets 21.42 24.27 114.67
Current assets
Inventories 6 146.64 109,54 104.2%
Financial assets .
- Investments 5A 289.63 151.95 49.41
- Trade receivables 5B 344,85 201.24 64.94
- Loans 5C 1.13 3.68 6.16
- Cash and cash equivalents 5D 20.38 22.40 34.51
Other current assets 7 1.04 0.76 1,22
Total current asscts 803.67 491.57 260.53
" Total assets §25.09 515.84 375.20
Equity and liabilities
Equity
Equity share capital 9 14,83 14,83 . 14.83
Other equity :
- Retained earnings 10 589.49 330.64 116.20
« Other reserves 10 ‘ 41.31 41.31 4131
Total equity 645.63 386.78 172.34
Non-current liabilities
Financial liabilities
- Borrowings 11 - - 0.03
Provisions 14 - 0.84 0.82
Deferred tax liabilities(net} 8 0.47 “ -
 Total non current liabilities 0.47 0.84 0.85
Current liabilities
Financial liabilities
- Borrowings 11 - - 26.05
- Trade payables 12 142.67 112.38 106.72
- Other financial liabflities 13 - 0.03 1,70
Provisions : 14 18.37 5.39 55.26
Other current liabilities . 15 17.95 10.42 12.28
Total current liabilities 178.99 128.22 202.01
Total equity and lizbilities i §25.09 515.84 375.20
Summary of significant accounting policies 2.1
The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements,
As per our report of even date
For S.R. Batliboi & Associates LLP For and on behalfof the Board of Directors of

i R N

Sumit Biswas
Director
DIN:01183456G




Chhava Prakashani Private Limited
CIN: U22122WB2006PTC111821
Statement of prefit and loss for the year ended 31 March 2018

(% in Million}

For the year ended Faor the year ended

Notes 31 March 2018 31 March 2017
1 Revenue from operations 16 1,162.02 996.34
1 Other income 17 15.64 7.31
TIT Total income (I+1I) 1,177,66 1,003.65
1V Expenses
Cost of raw material consumed 18 327.70 23896
Purchase of traded goods 19 . 14.76 12.64
(Increase)/decrease in inventories of finished goods and work in progress 20 (12.88) 3.8
Publication expenses 21 227.60 224.96
Employee benefits expense 22 94.75 86.99
Selling and distribution expenses 23 §7.91 64.15
Depreciation and amortisation expense 24 323 6.48
Other expenses 25 34.63 32.23
Total expenses 77770 670.27
Y Profit before tax (IT-IV) 399.96 333,38
V1 Tax expense: . )
Current tax 138.33 11531
Income tax adjustment related to earlier years - 2.68
Deferred tax charge 2.87 0.57
Total tax expenses 141.20 118.56
VII Frofit for the year 258.76 214.82
VIIT Other comprehensive income
- Ttems that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
Re-measurement gains/(losses) on defined benetit plans 26 0.13 (0.58)
Tax fmpact on re-measurement gain/(loss} on defined benefit plans (0.04) 0.20
1X Total Comprehensive Income for the year N
(Comprising Profit and Other Comprehensive Income for the year) 258.85 214.44
X FEarnings per equity share:
(1) Basic 27 1,725.07 1,432.13
{2) Diluted 1,725.07 1,432.13
Summary of significant accounting pelicies 2.1

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
As per our report of even date

For S.R. Batliboi & Associates LLP
ICAT Firm Registration No. 101049 / E300004
Chartered Accountants

g

per Yogesh Midha
Partner
Membership No.: 94941

Place ; New Delhi
Date ;22 May 2018

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of

Private Limitad

Sumit Biswas
Director
DIN:06054015 DIN:01183450




Chhaya Prakashani Private Limited
CIN: U22122WB2006PTC111821
Cash flow statement for the year ended 31 March 2018

(T in millions)

As at As at
31 March 2018 31 March 2017
Cash flow from operating activities
Profit befere fax 399.9¢6 333.38
Adjustment to reconcile profit before tax to net cash flows:-
Depreciation and amortization 323 6.48
Income from financial assets at amortised cost (6.59} (1.23)
Interest expense - 0.08
Interest income (1.56} (2.50)
{Profityloss on fixed assets sold (0.24) {0.81)
{Profit)loss on Investment (6.67) (2.79)
Liahilities written back (0.013 {0.01)
Provision for Sales Return 21.50 1.44
Bad debts written off 0.10 0.19
Operating profit before working capital changes 409,72 334.23
Adjustments for changes in working capital :
(Increase)/decrease in trade receivables (173.50) {150.45)
(Increase)/decrease in other nen-current assets and in other current assets 3.98 87.39
(Increase)/decrease in inventories (28.71) 746
Increase/(decrease) in non current trade payables and current trade payables 30,20 548
Tnerease/(decrease) in other payables and Provision 6,48 (29.85)
Cash generated from/(used in) operations 248,17 254260
Direct tax paid (125.37) (167.84)
Net cash generated from operation (A) 122.80 86.42
B. Cash flow from investing activities
Purchase of fixed assets, capital advances and capital work in progress (3.50) (4.26)
Proceeds trom Sale of Property, Plant and Equipment 1.53 329
Investment in Subsidiaries, Associates & Joint Ventures - (1.15)
Sale/(purchase) of Current/Non-Current Investments {net) (124.41) (98.80)
Interest received 1.56 2.50
Net cash used in investing activities (B {124.82) (98.42)
C, Cash flow from financing activities
Proceed/{Repayment) for long-term borrowings{net} - (0.03)
Interest paid - {0.08)
Net cash from financing activities (L] - (0,11}
Net decrease in cash & cash equivalents (A+B+C) {2.02) {12.11)
Cash and cash equivalents - at the beginning of the vear 22.40 3451
Cash and cash equivalents - at the end of the year 20.38 22.40
Components of cash and cash equivalents
Cash in hand 0.59 235
Balance with banks on current accounts 18,79 20.05.
Total Cash and cash equivalents (refer note 5C) 20.38 22,40
Non-cash investing and financing transactions
Acquisition of properly, plant and equipment by means of a finance lease - -
Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing activities
LOI.lg tErlfl borrowings Short term
(including current L
L borrowings
matuorities)
As at 31 March 2017 - -
Cash flows - -
Non ¢ash changes - -
As at 31 March 2018 - -
Summary of significant accounting policles 2.1

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial staterments.
As per our report of even date

For S.R. Batlibei & Associates LLP
ICAI Firm Registration No. 101049% / E300004
Chartered Accountants '

pef Yogesh Midha
Partner
Membership No.: 94941

Place ; New Delhi
Date : 22 May 2018

For and on behalf,»o{the Board of Director of

ya Pral i Private Limited

Chha

mshu Gupta Sumit Biswas
Director Director
DIN:00054015 DIN:01183450




Chhaya Prakashani Private Limited
CIN: U22122WER2006PTCI11521
Statement of changes in cquity for the year ended 31 March 2018

A. Equity share capital:

Tssued, subscribed and fully paid up (Share of ¥ 100 each)

Wo, of shares

(T in Million)

Summary of significant accounting policies

2.1

At1 April 2016 1,48,284 14.83

Issued during the year - -

At 31 March 2017 1,48,284 14.83

Issued during the year - P

At 31 March 2018 1,48,284 14.83
B, Other equity (% in Million)

Reserve & Sarplus
Particulars Retained General Security Total
earnings reserve premium account

Asat1 April 2016 116.20 30.00 11.31 157.51

Profit for the year 214.82 - - 214.82

Qther comprehensive income for the year (0.38) - - {0.38)

Total Comprehensive Income for the year 214.44 - - 214.44

As at 31 March 2017 330.64 30,00 11.31 371.95

Profit for the year 258.76 - ‘ - 258.76

Other comprehensive income for the year 0.09 - - 0.0

Total Comprehensive Income for the year - 258.85 - - 258.85

As at 31 March 2018 589.49 30.00 11.31 630.80

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
As per our report of even date

For S.R, Batliboi & Associates LLF
ICAI Firm Registration No. 101049W / E300004
Chartered Acconntants

per Yogesh Midha
Partner
Membership No.: 94941

Place : New Delhi
Date : 22 May 2018

For and on behalfof the Board of Divectors of

Sumit Biswas
Director
DIN:00054015 DIN:01183450




2.2

Chhaya Prakashani Private Limited
Notes to financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2018
(Amounts in Indian Rupees, unless otherwise stated)

Corporate information

Chhaya Prakashani Private Limited (the company) is a private company incorporated under the provisions of the
Companies Act, 1956 These are standalone financial statements and, accordingly, these Indian Accounting Standard (Ind
AS) financial statements incorporate amounts and disclosures related to the Company only.

The Company is primarily engaged in publishing of educational books with products ranging from School Books,
Competition Books, Reference Books, Technical Books, Professional Books, Children Books and Career in printing and
binding of educational books, '

Significant acconnting policies
Basis of preparation

The financial statements of the Company have been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS)
notified under the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended from time to time

For all periods up to and including the year ended 31 March 2017, the Company prepared its financial statements in
accordance with accounting standards notified under the section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013, read together with
paragraph 7 of the Companies (Accounting Standards) Rules, 2014 and Companies (Accounting Standards) Amendment
Rules, 2016 (Indian GAAP). These financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2018 are the first the Company has
prepared in accordance with Ind AS, Reconciliation and description of effect of transition to Ind AS has been summarised
in Note 42.

The financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost convention, except for the following assets and liabilities
which have been measured at fair value (refer accounting policy regarding financial instruments).

The financial statements are presented in INR (Indian Rupees) and all values are rounded to the nearest million, except
when otherwise indicated.

Current versus non-current classification
The Company presents assets and liabilities in the balance sheet based on current/ non-current classification.
An asset is classified as current when;
¢ ltis expected to be realised or intended to sold or consumed in normal eperating cycle
e It is held primarily for the purpose of trading
s It is expected to be realised within twelve months after the reporting period, or
e Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at least twelve months
after the reporting period.

All other assets are classified as non-current,

A lability is classified as current when:

» It is expected to be settled in normal operating cycle

= [t is held primarily for the purpose of trading

¢ It is due to be seftled within twelve months after the reporting petiod, or

¢ There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve months after the reporting
period

The Company classifies all other liabilities as non-current. )
p

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-current assets and liabilities, /

e
o




Chhaya Prakashani Private Limited
Notes to financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2018
(Amounts in Indian Rupees, unless otherwise stated)

The operating cycle is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realisation in cash and cash
equivalents. The Company has identified twelve months as its operating cycle.

Foreign currencies

Functional and presentational currency

The Company’s financial statements are presented in INR, which is also the Company’s functional currency. Functional
currency is the currency of the primary economic environment in which an entity operates and is normally the currency
in which the entity primarily generates and expends cash.

Transactions and balances

Transactions in foreign currencies are initially recorded by the Company at the functional currency spot rates at the date
the transaction first qualifies for recognition.

Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the functional currency spot rates of
exchange at the reporting date.

Exchange differences arising on settlement or transiation of monetary items are recognised in profit or loss.
Fair value measurement

The Company measures certain financial instruments and equity settled employee share based payment plan at fair value
at each reporting date.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction
between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement is based on the presumption that the
transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either:

o in the principal market for the asset or liability, or

» inthe absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability.

The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessibie by the Company.

The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants would use when
pricing the asset or lability, assuming that market participants act in their economic best interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market participant's ability to generate economic
benefits by using the agset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another market participant that would use the
asset in its highest and best use.

The Company uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circurnstances and for which sufficient data are
available to measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable inputs and minimising the use of
unobservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are categorised within
the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement as a whole: : =
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e level 1 - Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or Habilities

o Level 2— Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement is
directly or indirectly observable

e Level 3 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement is
unobservable.

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial statements on a recurring basis, the Company determines
whether transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by re-assessing categorisation (based on the lowest
level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole) at the end of each reporting period.

External valuers are involved for valuation of significant assets, unguoted financial assets, and significant liabilities,
such as valuation of unquoted investments and equity settled employee share based payment plan. Involvement of
external valuers is decided upon annually by the Company’s management, Selection criteria include market knowledge,
reputation, independence and whether professional standards are maintained.

At each reporting date, the Company’s management analyses the movements in the values of assets and Tiabilities which
are required to be re-measured or re-assessed as per the Company’s accounting policies. For this analysis, the
Company’s management verifies the major inputs applied in the latest valuation by agreeing the information in the
valuation computation to contracts and other relevant documents.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognised to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Company and the
revenue can be reliably measured, regardless of when the payment is received. Revenue is measured at the fair value of
the consideration received or receivable, taking into account contractually defined terms of payment and excluding taxes
or-duties collected on behalf of the government. The Company has concluded that it is the principal in all of its revenue
arrangements since it is the primary obligor in all the revenue arrangements, has pricing latitude, and is also exposed to
credit risks.

Sales tax/ Value added tax (VAT)/ Goods and services Tax (GST) is not received by the Company on its own account,
Rather, it is tax collected on value added to the commeodity by the seller on behalf of the government, Accordingly, it is
excluded from revenue.

The specific recognition criteria described below must also be met before revenue is recognised.

Sale of goods

Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised when the significant risks and rewards of ownership of the goods have
passed to the buyer. Revenue from the sale of goods is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or
receivable, net of sales returns, turnover discounts and cash discounts,

The provision for anticipated returns is made primarily on the basis of historical return rates. The provision for turnover
discount and cash discount {s made on estimated basis based on historical trends,

Sale of services
Service income is recognized on accrual basis as and when services are provided and invoices raised during the year.

Interest income

Interest income is recognized on time proportion basis taking into account the amount outstanding and the rate applicable.
For all financial instruments measured at amortised cost and other interest-bearing financial assets, interest income is
recorded using the effective interest rate (EIR). The EIR, ds* discoul}bs’ the estimated future cash
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receipts over the expected life of the financial instrument or a shorter period, where appropriate, fo the net carrying
amount of the financial asset. When calculating the effective interest rate, the Company estimates the expected cash
fiows by considering all the contractual terms of the financial instrument (for example, prepayment, extension, call and
similar options) but does not consider the expected credit losses. Interest income is included in other income in the
statement of profit or loss.

Income taxes

Current income tax

Current income tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount expected to be recovered from or paid to the tax
authorities in accordance with the Indian Income Tax Act, 1961, The tax rates and tax laws used to compute the amount
are those that are enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date in the countries where the Company operates
and generates taxable income.

Current income tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit or loss (either in other
comprehensive income or in equity). Current tax items are recognised in correlation to the underlying transaction either
in OCI or directly in equity. Management periodically evaluates positions taken in the tax returns with respect to
situations in which applicable tax regulations are subject to interpretation and establishes provisions where appropriate.

Deferred tax
Deferred tax is provided using the liability method on temporary differences between the tax bases of assets and
liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes at the reporting date.

Deferrad tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary differences, except:

* When the deferred tax liability arises from the initial recognition of goodwill or an asset or liability in a transaction
that is not a business combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable
profit or loss :

o Inrespect of taxable temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries, associates and interests in
joint arrangements, when the timing of the reversal of the temporary differences can be controlled and it is probable
that the temporary differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future. |

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences, the carry forward of unused tax credits and
any unused tax losses, Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be
available against which the deductible temporary differences, and the carry forward of unused fax credits and unused
tax losses can be utilised, except:

e  When the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible temporary difference arises from the initial recognition of an
asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither
the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss

o In respect of deductible temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries, associates and interests
in joint arrangements, deferred tax assets are recognised only to the extent that it is probable that the temporary
differences will reverse in the foreseeable future and taxable profit will be available against which the temporary
differences can be utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the extent that it is no
longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be utilised.
Unrecogaised deferred tax assets are re-assessed at each reporting date and are recognised fo the extent that it has
become probable that future taxable profits will allow the deferred tax asset to be recovers -
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Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the year when the asset is
realised or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted at
the reporting date.

Deferred tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit or loss, Deferred tax items
are recognised in correlation to the underlying transaction either in other comprehensive income or directly in equity.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if a [egally enforceable right exists to set off current tax assets
against current tax liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to the same taxable entity and the same taxation authority.

Property, plant and equipment

Under the previous GAAP (Indian GAAP), property, plant and equipment, except land and building acquired before 1
April 2016, were carried in the balance sheet at cost, net of accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment
losses, if any. '

On transition to Ind AS, the Company has elected to continue with the carrying value for all its item of property, plant
and equipment as recognised in its Indian GAAP financial as deemed cost at the transition date, as at 1st April 2016.

Capital work in progress, plant and equipment are stated at cost, net of accumulated depreciation and/or zecumulated
impairment losses, if any. Such cost includes the cost of replacing parts of the property, plant and equipment and
borrowing costs for long-term constraction projects if the recognition criteria are met.

When significant parts of property, plant and equipment are required to be replaced at intervals, the Company recognises
such parts as individual assets with specific useful lives and depreciates them accordingly. Likewise, when a major
inspection is performed, its cost is recognised in the carrying amount of the plant and equipment as a replacement if the
recognition criteria are satisfied. All other repair and maintenance costs are recognised in the profit or loss as incurred.

Subéequent costs are capitalised on the carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when
future economic benefits associated with the item are probable to flow to the Company and cost of the item can be
measured reliably.

Gains or losses arising from de-recognition of an intangible asset are measured as the difference between the net disposal
proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and are recognised in the statement of profit or loss when the asset is
derecognised.

An item of property, plant and equipment and any significant part initially recognised is derecognised upon disposal or
when no future economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any gair or loss arising on de-recognition of
the asset {calculated as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) is included
in the statement of profit or loss when the asset is derecognised.

|
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Depreciation

Till 31° March 2017, depreciation on property, plant and equipment was being provided on written down value method.
W.e.f. 158 April 2017, depreciation is being provided on straight [ine method.

Depreciation on property, plant and equipment, other than leasehold improvements, have been provided on pro-rata
basis, on the straight Iine method, using rates determined based on management’s technical assessment of useful

economic lives of the asset.

Followings are the estimated useful lives of various category of assets used.

Category of assets Useful life as adopted by Useful life as per Schedule 11
manggement
Office Equipment - 5 years 5 years
Furniture & fixture 10 years 10 years
Vehicle 8 years 8 years
Electrical Installation 10 years 10} years
Computer 3 years 3 years

*Tablets are depreciated at an estimated useful life of 3 years,

Leasehold improvements are amortised over economic useful life or unexpired period of lease whichever is less. Assets
costing ¥ 5,000 or less are depreciated entirely in the year of purchase.

The Company, based on technical assessment made by technical expert and management estimate, depreciates certain
items of plant and machinery, vehicles, computers and building over estimated useful lives which are different from
useful life prescribed in Schedule II to the Companies Act, 2013, The management believes that these estimated useful
lives are realistic and reflect fair approximation of the period over which the assets are likely to be used.

The residual values, useful lives and methods of depreciation of property, plant and equipment are reviewed at each
financial year end and adjusted prospectively, if appropriate.

Intangible assets

Under the previcus GAAP {Indian GAAP), intangible assets were carried in the balance sheet at cost, net of accumulated
ameortization and accumulated impairment losses, if any.

On transition to Ind AS, The Company has elected to continue with the carrying value for all its item of intangible assets
as recognised in its Indian GAAP financial as deemed cost at the transition date, as at 1st April 2016,

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial recognition at cost. Following initial recognition, intangible
assets are carried at cost less accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment losses, if any. Internally generated
intangible assets, excluding capitalised development costs, are not capitalised and expenditure is recognised in the
statement of profit or loss when it is incurred.

Amortisation and useful lives
The useful lives of intangible assets are assessed as either finite or indefinite.
Intangible assets with finite lives are amortised over their usefull economic lives and assessed for impairment whenever

there is an indication that the intangible asset may be impaired. The amortisation period and the amortisation method
for an intangible asset with a finite useful life are reviewed at least at the end of each reporting period. Changes in the
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expected useful life or the expected pattern of consumption of future economic benefits embodied in the asset are
accounted for by changing the amortisation period or method, as appropriate, and are treated as changes in accounting
estimates. The amortisation expense on intangible assets with finite lives is recognised in the statement of profit or loss
in the expense category consistent with the function of the intangible assets.

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives are not amortised, but are tested for impairment annually, either individually
or at the cash-generating unit level. The assessment of indefinite life is reviewed annually to determine whether the
indefinite life continues to be supportable. If not, the change in useful life from indefinite to finite is made on a
prospective basis.

Gains or losses arising from de-recognition of an intangible asset are measured as the difference between the net disposal

proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and are recognised in the staternent of profit or loss when the asset is
derecognised.

A summary of the policies applied to the Company’s intangible assets is as follows:

Intangible assets Useful lives Amortization method used Internally
generated or
acquired
Computer software Finite (5 years) Amortized on straight line basis | Acquired
over the period of useful lives
Trademark Finite (5 years) Amortized on straight line basis | Acquired
over the period of useful lives
Copyrights Finite (3-5 years) Amortized on straight line basis | Acquired
over the period of copyright

Research and development costs

Research costs are expensed as incurred. Development expenditure incurred on an individual project is recognized as
an intangible asset when the company can demonstrate ali the following:

e The technical feasibility of completing the intangible asset so that it will be available for use or sale. Its intention
to complete the asset.

»  Its ability to use or sell the asset. How the asset will generate fisture economic benefits
e  The availability of adequate resources to complete the development and to use or sell the asset
¢  The ability to measure reliably the expenditure attributable to the intangible asset during development.

Following the initial recognition of the development expenditure as an asset, the cost model is applied requiring the
asset to be carried at cost less any accumulated amortization and accumulated impairment losses. Amortization of the
asset begins when development is complete and the asset is available for use, It is amortized on a straight line basis over
the period of expected future benefit from the related project. Amortization is recognized in the statement of profit and
ioss. During the period of development, the asset is tested for impairment annually, ‘
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Borrowing cost

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of qualifying asset are capitalised as
part of the cost of the asset. All other borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which they are incurred.
Capitalisation of borrowing costs is suspended and charged to the Statement of profit and loss during extended period
when active development activity of the qualifying assets is interrupted.

Borrowing costs consist of interest and other costs that an entity incurs in connection with the borrowing of funds. It
also includes exchanges differences to the extent regarded as an adjustment to the borrowing costs.

Leases

The determination of whether an arrangement is (or contains) a lease is based on the substance of the arrangement at
the inception of the lease. The arrangement is, or contains, a lease if fulfilment of the arrangement is dependent on the
use of a specific asset or assets and the arrangement conveys a right to use the asset or assets, even if that right is not
explicitly specified in an arrangement.

Company as a lessee

A lease is classified at the inception date as a finance lease or an operating lease. A lease that transfers substantially all
the risks and rewards incidental to ownership to the Company is classified as a finance lease. An operating lease is a
lease other than a finance lease.

Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense in the staternent of profit and loss on a straight-line basis over
the lease term.

Inventories

Inventories are valued at the lower of cost and net realisable value.
Costs incurred in bringing each product to its present location and condition is accounted for as follows:

« Raw materials: cost includes cost of purchase and other costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their present
location and condition. Cost is determined on first in, first out basis.

« Finished goods and work in progress: cost includes cost of direct materials and labour and a proportion of
manufacturing overheads based on the normal operating capacity, but excluding borrowing costs. Cost is determined
on first in, first out basis.

« Traded goods: cost includes cost of purchase and other costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their present
location and condition. Cost is determined on first in, first out basis.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less estimated costs of completion
and the estimated costs necessary to make the sale.

Impairment of non—financial assets

The Company assesses, at each reporting date, whether there is an indication that an asset may be impaired. If any
indication exists, or when annual impairment festing for an asset is required, the Company estimates the asset’s
recoverable amount. An asset’s recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s or cash-generating unit’s (CGU) fair
value less costs of disposal and its value in use. Recoverable amount is determined for an individual asset, unless the
asset does not generate cash inflows that are largely'independent of those from other assets or gro of assets. When
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the carrying amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its recoverable amount, the asset is considered impaired and is written
down to its recoverable amount,

In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount
rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset. In determining
fair value less costs of disposal, recent market transactions are taken into account. If no such transactions can be
identified, an appropriate valuation model is used. These calculations are corroborated by valuation multiples, quoted
share prices for publicly traded companies or other available fair value indicators.

The Company bases its impairment calculation on detailed budgets and forecast calculations, which are prepared
sepéu*ately for each of the Company’s CGUs to which the individual assets are allocated. These budgets and forecast
calculations generally cover a period of five years, For longer periods, a long-term growth rate is calculated and applied
to project future cash flows after the fifth year. To estimate cash flow projections beyond periods covered by the most
recent budgets/forecasts, the Company extrapolates cash flow projections in the budget using a steady or declining
growth rate for subsequent years, unless an increasing rate can be justified. In any case, this growth rate does not exceed
the long-term average growth rate for the products, industries, or country or countries in which the entity operates, or
for the market in which the asset is used.

Impairment losses of continuing operations, including impairment on inventories, are recognised in. the statement of
profit and loss.

For assets excluding goodwill, an assessment is made at each reporting date to determine whether there is an indication
that previously recognised impairment losses no longer exist orhave decreased. If such indication exists, the Company
estimates the asset’s or CGU’s recoverable amount. A previously recognised impairment loss is reversed cnly if there
has been a change in the assumptions used to determine the asset’s recoverable amount since the last impairment loss
was recognised. The reversal is limited so that the carrying amount of the asset does not exceed its recoverable amount,
nor exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined, net of depreciation, had no impairment loss been
recognised for the asset in prior years. Such reversal is recognised in the statement of profit or loss unless the asset is
carried at a revalued amount, in which case, the reversal is treated as a revaluation increase,

Goodwill is tested for fmpairment annually and when circumstances indicate that the carrying value may be impaired.
Impairment is determined for goodwill by assessing the recoverable amount of each CGU (or group of CGUs) to which

the goodwill relates. When the recoverable amount of the CGU is less than its carrying amount, an irapairment loss is
recognised. Impairment losses relating to goodwill cannot be reversed in future periods.

Financial Instruments

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial lability or equity
instrument of another entity.

Financial assets
Initial recognition and measurement

All financial assets are recognised initially at fair value plus, in the case of financial assets not recorded at fair value
through profit or loss, transaction costs that are attributable to the acquisition of the financial asset.
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Subsequent measurement
For purposes of subsequent measurement, financial assets are classified in four categories:

« Financial agsets at amortised cost

» Debt instruments at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCT)
s Equity instruments at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI)
» Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL)

Financial assets at amortised cost

A ‘debt instrument’ is measured at the amortised cost if both the following conditions are met:

¢ The asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets for collecting contractual cash flows, and

e Contractual terms of the asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and
interest (SPPI) on the principal amount outstanding. -

After initial measurement, such financial assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest
rate (EIR) method, Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees
or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortization is included in finance income in the profit or loss.
The losses arising from impairment are recognised in the profit or loss.

Debt instrument at FYTOCI

A debt instruments is classified as at the FVTOCI if both of the following criteria are met:

» The objective of the business model is achieved both by collecting contractual cash flows and selling the financial
assets, and '

s The asset’s contractual cash flows represent SPPI.

Debt instruments included within the FVTOCI category are measured initially as well as at each reporting date at fair
valye. Fair value movements are recognized in the other comprehensive income {OCI). However, the Compaﬂy
recognizes interest income, impairment losses & reversals and foreign exchange gain or loss in the P&L. On de-
recognition of the asset, cumulative gain or logs previously recognised in OCI is reclassified from the equity to P&L.
Interest earned whilst holding FVTOCI debt instrument is reported as interest income using the EIR method.

Equity instruments at FYTOCI

All equity instruments in scope of Ind AS 109 are measured at fair value. Equity insiruments which are held for trading
and contingent consideration recognised by an acquirer in a business combination to which ITnd AS 103 applies are
classified as at FVTPL, For all other equity instruments, the group may make an irrevocable election to present
subsequent changes in the fair value in other comprehensive income. The group makes such election on an instrument-
by-instrument basis. The classification is made on initial recognition and is irrevocable,

If the company decides to classify an equity instrument as at FVTOCI, then all fair value changes on the instrument,
excluding dividends, are recognized in the OCL There is no recycling of the amounts from OCI to P&L, even on sale
of investment. However, the company may transfer the cumulative gain or loss within equity.

Equity instruments included within the FVTPL category are measured at fair value with all changes recognized in the
statement of profit and loss.
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Financial assets at FVTPL

FVTPL is a residual category for financial assets. Any financial assets, which does not meet the criteria for
categorization as at amortized cost or as FVTOC], is classified as at FVTPL,

In addition, the Company may elect to classify a financial asset, which otherwise meets amortized cost or FVTOCI
criteria, as at FVTPL. However, such election is allowed only if doing so reduces or eliminates a measurement or
recognition inconsistency (referred to as “accounting mismatch’).

Financial assets included within the FVTPL category are measured at fair value with all changes recognized in the
statement of profit and loss.

De-recognition

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a group of similar financial assets) is primarily
derecognised (i.e. removed from the Company’s standalone balance sheet} when:

o The rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired, or

¢ The Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset or has assumed an obligation te pay the
received cash flows in full without material delay to a third party under a ‘pass-through’ arrangement; and either ()
the Company has transferred substantiafly all the risks and rewards of the asset, or (b) the Company has neither
transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of the asset.

‘When the Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from an asset or has entered into a pass-through
arrangement, it evaluates if and to what extent it has retained the risks and rewards of ownership. When it has neither
transferred nor retained substantially all of the risks and rewards of the asset, nor transferred control of the asset, the
company continues to recognise the transferred asset to the extent of the Company’s continuing involvement, In that
case, the company also recognises an associated liability. The transferred asset and the associated liability are measured
on a basis that reflects the rights and obligations that the Company has retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the transferred asset is measured at the lower of the
original carrving amount of the asset and the maximum amount of consideration that the Company could be required to

repay.
Impairment of financial assets

In accordance with Ind-AS 109, the Company applies expected credit loss (ECL) model for measurement and

recognition of impairmert loss on the following financial assets and credit risk exposure;

+ Financial assets that are measured at amortised cost e.g., loans, debt securities, deposits, trade receivables and bank
balance

¢ Financial assets that are measured as at FVTOCI

¢ [ease receivables under Ind-AS 7.

e Contract assets and trade receivables under Ind-AS 18.

¢ Loan commitments which are not measured as at FVTPL.

¢ Financial guarantee contracts which are not measured as at FVTPL

The Company follows ‘simplified approach’ for recognition of impairment loss allowance on:
. Trade receivables, and
. All lease receivables resulting from transactions within the scope of Ind AS 17,
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The application of simplified approach does not require the Company to track changes in credit risk. Rather, it recognises
impairment loss allowance based on lifetime ECLs at each reporting date, right from its initial recognition.

For recognition of impairment less on other financial assets and risk exposure, the Company determines that whether
there has been a significant increase in the credit risk since initial recognition. If credit risk has not increased
significantly, 12-month ECL is used to provide for impairment loss. However, if credit risk has increased significantly,
lifetime ECL is used. If, in a subsequent period, credit quality of the instrument improves such that there is no longer a
significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition, then the entity reverts to recognising impaitment loss
allowance based on 12-month ECL.

Lifetime ECL are the expected credit losses resulting from all possible default events over the expected life of a financial
instrument. The 12-month ECL is a portion of the lifetime ECL which results from default events on a financial
instrument that are possible within 12 months after the reporting date. '

ECL is the difference between all contractual cash flows that are due to the Company in accordance with the contract
and all the cash flows that the entity expects to receive (i.e., all cash shortfalls), discounted at the original EIR. When
estimating the cash flows, an entity is required to consider;

» All contractual terms of the financial instrument (including prepayment extension, call and similar options) over the
expected life of the financial instrument. However, in rare cases when the expected life of the financial instrument
cannot be estimated reliably, then the entity is required to use the remaining contractual term of the financial
instrument.

s Cash flows from the sale of collateral held or other credit enhancements that are integral to the contractual terms.

As a practical expedient, the Company uses a provision matrix to determine impairment loss allowance on portfolio of
its trade receivables. The provision matrix is based on its historically observed default rates over the expected life of the
trade receivables and is adjusted for forward-looking estimates. At every reporting date, the historical observed default
rates are updated and changes in the forward-looking estimates are analysed. '

ECL impairment loss allowance (or reversal) recognized during the period is recognized as income/expense in the
statement of profit and loss (P&L). This amount is reflected under the head ‘other expenses’ in the P&L. The balance
sheet presentation for various financial instruments is described below:

The balance sheet presentation for various financial instruments is described below:-

a) For financial assets measured as at amortised cost and lease receivables: ECL is presented as an allowance, i.e. as
an integral part of the measurement of those assets in the balance sheet. The allowance reduces the net carrying
amount, Until the asset meets write-off criteria, the Company does not reduce impairment allowance from the
gross carrying amount.

h) Loan commitments and financial guarantee contracts: ECL is presented as a provision in the balance sheet, i.e. as
a liability.

¢) Debt instruments measured at FVTOCI: Since finaneial assets are already reflected at fair value, impairment
allowance is not further reduced from its value. Rather, ECL amount is presented as ‘accumulated impairment
ameount’ in the OCL

For assessing increase in credit risk and impairment loss, the Company combines financial instruments on the basis of
shared credit risk characteristics with the objective of facilitating an analysis that is designed to enable significant
increases in credit risk to be identified on a timely basis.

The Company does not have any purchased or originated credit-impaired (POCT) financial assets;1.e., financial assets
which are credit impaired on purchase/ origination.
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Financial liabilities

Initial recognition and measurement
Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss, loans
and borrowings, payables, or as derivatives designated as hedging instruments in an effective hedge, as appropriate.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and, in the case of loans and borrowings and payables, net
of directly attributable transaction costs,

The Company’s financial liabilities include trade and other payables and loans and borrowings including bank
overdrafts.

Subsequent measurement
The measurement of financial liabilities depends on their classification, as described below:

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss include financial liabilities held for trading and financial liabilities
designated upon initial recognition as at fair value through profit or loss. Financial liabilities are classified as held for
trading if they are incurred for the purpose of repurchasing in the néar term. Gains or losses on liabilities held for trading
are recognised in the profit or loss,

Financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition at fair value through profit or loss are designated as such at the
initial date of recognition, and only if the criteria in Ind-AS 109 are satisfied. For liabilities designated as FVTPL, fair
value gains/ losses aftributable to changes in own credit risk are recognized in OCI, These gains/loss are not
subsequently transferred to P&L. However, the Company may transter the cumulative gain or loss within equity. All
other changes in fair value of such liability are recognised in the statement of profit or loss.

Loans and borrowings

This is the category most relevant to the Company. After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings are
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the EIR method. Gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss when
the liabilities are derecognised as well as through the EIR amortisation process. Amortised cost is calculated by taking
into account any discount or premium on acquisition ahd fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR, The EIR
amortisation is included as finance costs in the statement of profit and loss. This category generally applies to
borrowings.

Financial guarantee contracts

Financial guarantee contracts issued by the Company are those contracts that require a payment to be made to reimburse
the holder for a loss it incurs because the specified debtor fails to make a payment when due in accordance with the
terms of a debt instrament. Financial guarantee contracts are recognised initially as a liability at fair value, adjusted for
transaction costs that dre directly attributable to the issuance of the guarantee. Subsequently, the liability is measured at
the higher of the amount of loss allowance determined ag per impairment requirements of Ind-AS 109 and the amount
recognised less cumulative amortisation,

De-recognition
A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or expires. When
an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms
of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as the de-recognition of
the original liability and the recognition of a new liability. The difference in the respective carrving amounts is
recognised in the statement of profit or loss
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Re-classification of Financial Assets

The Company determines classification of financial assets and liabilities on initial recognition. After initial recognition,
no reclassification is made for financial assets which are equity instruments and financial liabilities. For financial assets
which are debt instruments, a reclassification is made only if there is a change in the business model for managing those
assets. Changes to the business model are expected to be infrequent. The Company’s senior management determines
change in the business model as a result of external or internal changes which are significant to the Company’s
operations. Such changes are evident to external parties. A change in the business model occurs when the Company
either begins or ceases to perform an activity that is significant to its operations. If the Company reclassifies financial
assets, it applies the reclassification prospectively from the reclassification date which is the first day of the immediately
next reporting period following the change in business model, The Company does not restate any previously recognised
gains, losses (including impairment gains or losses) or interest.

Offsetting of Financizal Instruments
Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the unconsolidated balance sheet if

there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net
basis, to realise the assets and settle the liabilities simultanecusly.

Retirement and other employee benefits

Retirement benefit in the form of provident fund is a defined contribution scheme. The Company has no obligation,
other than the contribution payable to the provident fund. The Company recognizes contribution payable to the provident
fund scheme as an expense, when an employee renders the related service. If the contribution payabie to the scheme for
service received before the balance sheet date exceeds the contribution already paid, the deficit payable to the scheme
is recognized as a liability after deducting the contribution already paid. If the contribution already paid exceeds the
contribution due for services received before the balance sheet date, then excess is recognized as an asset to the extent
that the pre-payment will lead to, for example, a reduction in future payment or a cash refund.

The Company operates a defined benefit gratuity plan in India, which requires contributions to be made to a separately
administered fund.

The cost of providing benefits under the defined benefit plan is determined using the projected unit credit method.

Re-measurements, comprising of actuarial gains and losses, the effect of the asset ceiling, excluding amounts included
in net interest on the net defined benefit liability and the return on plan assets (excluding amounts included in net interest
on the net defined benefit liability), are recognised immediately in the balance sheet with a corresponding debit or credit
to retained earnings through OCI in the period in which they occur. Re-measurements are not reclassified to profit or
loss in subsequent periods.

Compensated absences

Accumulated leave, which is expected to be ntilized within the next 12 months, ia treated as short-term employee benefit,
The Company measures the expected cost of such absences as the additional amount that it expects to pay as a result of
the unused entitlement that has accumulated at the reporting date.

Provisions

General

Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past event,
it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a
reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. When the Company expectyme or all of a provision to
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be reimbursed, the reimbursement is recognised as a separate asset, but only when the reimbursement is virtually certain.
The expense relating to a provision is presented in the statement of profit or loss net of any reimbursement.

If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are discounted using a current pre-tax rate that reflects,
when appropriate, the risks specific to the liability. When discounting is used, the increase in the provision due to the
passage of time is recognised as a finance cost.

2.16 Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalent in the balance sheet comprise cash at banks and on hand and short-term deposits with an

original maturity of three months or less, which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in vahae,

For the purpose statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents consist of cash at bank and in hand and short term
investments with an original maturity of three months or less.

2.17 Earnings Per Share (EPS)

Basic EPS amounts are calculated by dividing the profit or loss for the period attributable to equity shareholders of the
company by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year.

Diluted EPS amounts are calculated by dividing the profit or loss attributable to equity shareholders of the company by
the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year plus the weighted average number of equity
shares that would be issued on conversion of all the dilutive potential equity shares into equity shares,

2.18 Cash dividend and non-cash distribution to equity holders of the Company

219

The Company recognises a liability to make cash or non-cash distributions to equity holders of the Company when the
distribution is authorised and the distribution is no longer at the discretion of the Company. As per the corporate laws
in India, a distribution is authorised when it is approved by the shareholders. A corresponding amount is recognised
directly in equity.

Non-cash distributions are measured at the fair value of the assets to be distributed with fair value re-measurement
recognised directly in equity.

Upon distribution of non-cash assets, any diffetence between the carrying amount of the liability and the carrying
amount of the assets distributed is recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

Standards issued but not yet effective
a. Ind AS 115 - Revenue from contracts with customers

Ind AS 115 was notified on 28 March 2018 and establishes a five-step model to account for revenue arising from
contracts with customers. Under Ind AS 115, revenue is recognised at an amount that reflects the consideration to which
an entity expects to be entitled in exchange for transferring goeds or services to a customer, The new revenue standard
will supersede all current revenue recognition requirements under Ind AS. Either a full retrospective application or a
modified retrogpective application is required for annual periods beginning on or after 1 April 2018. The Company will
adopt the new standard on the required effective date using the modified retrospective method. The Company has
established an implementation team to implement Ind AS 115 related to the recog‘nition of revenue from contracts with
customers and it continues to evaluate the changes to accoting system and processes, and additional disclosure




Chhaya Prakashani Private Limited
Notes to financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2018
(Amounts in Indian Rupees, unless otherwise stated)

requirements that may be necessary. A reliable estimate of the quantitative impact of Ind AS 115 on the financial
statements will only be possible once the implementation project has been completed.

b. Amendmenis to Ind 112 Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities: Clarification of the scope of disclosure
requirements in Ind AS 112

The amendments clarify that the disclosure requirements in Ind AS 112, other than those in paragraphs B10-B16, apply
10 an entity’s interest in a subsidiary, a joint venture or an associate (or a portion of its inferest in a joint venture or an
associate) that is classified {(or included in a disposal group that is classified) as held for sale.

c. Appendix B to Ind AS 21 Foreign Currency Transactions and Advance Consideration

The Appendix clarifies that, in determiﬁing the spot exchange rate to use on initial recognition of the related asset,
expense or income {or part of it} on the derecognition of a non-monetaty asset or non-monetary liability relating to
advance consideration, the date of the transaction is the date on which an entity initially recognises the non-monetary
asset or non-monetary liability arising from the advance consideration. If there are multiple payments or receipts in
advance, then the entity must determine the transaction date for each payment or receipt of advance consideration.

Entities may apply the Appendix requirements on a fully retrospective basis. Alternatively, an entity may apply these
requirements prospectively to all assets, expenses and income in its scope that are initially recognised on or after:

{i) The beginning of the reporting period in which the entity first applies the Appendix, or

(i1} The beginning of a prior reporting period presented as comparative information in the financial statements of the
reporting period in which the entity first applies the Appendix.

The Appendix is effective for annual periods beginning on or after | April 2018, However, since the Company’s current
practice is in line with the Interpretation, the Company does not expect any effect on its financial statements.

Changes in accounting policies and disclosures
New and amended standards and interpretations

The Compahy applied for the first time certain amendments to the standards, which are effective for annual periods
beginning on or after 1 April 2017. The nature and the impact of each amendment is described below:

Amendments to Ind AS 7 Statement of Cash Flows: Disclosure Initiative
The amendments require entities to provide disclosure of changes in their liabilities arising from financing activities,

including both chanpes arising from cash flows and non-cash changes (such as foreign exchange gains or losses). The
Company has provided the information for both the current and the comparative period in Cash Flow Statement,
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3. Property, plant and equipment

{Z in Million)

Particulars Pk_mt & F“r,mmre & Vehicles Ele‘:trlfal Computer Total
Equipment Tixtures Installations
Cost® )
Asat | April 2016 2.01 431 7.88 1.18 0.88 16.26
Additions 0.69 0.46 - - 0.50 1.65
Deletions - - (2.61) - - (2.61)
As at 31 March 2017 2.70 4.77 5.27 1.18 1.38 15,30
Additions 0.07 0.21 - - 0.61 0.89
Deletions - - (1.9H - - (1.54)
As at31 March 2018 2.77 4,98 3.33 1.18 1.99 14.25
Depreciation
As atl April 2016 - - - - - -
Charge during the year 1.05 1.22 1.80 031 0.60 4,98
Delstions - - 0.13) - - 0.13)
As at 31 March 2017 1.05 1.22 1.67 0.31 0.60 4.85
Charge during the year 0.40 0.36 041 0,09 047 1.73
Deletions - - - (0.66) - - (0.66)
As at 31 March 2018 145 1.58 1.42 0.40 1.07 5.92
Net block
Asatl April 2016 2,01 4.31 7.88 1.18 0.88 16.26
As at 31 March 2017 1.65 3.58 3.60 0.87 0.78 10.45
As at31 March 2018 1.32 3.40 1.91 0.78 0,92 8.33
Note: Deemed cost as at April 1, 2016 is caleulated as shown beiow:
(% in Million)
1. Particulars P!?nt & Fur.mture & Vehicles Electrl?a] Computer Total
Equipment Fixtures Installations

Gross block 5.28 - 740 14.92 1.45 3.36 32.41
Accumulated depreciation (3.27) (3.09) (7.04) {0.27) (2.48) (16,15}
Deemed Cost as at 1 April 2016 2.01 4.31 7.88 118 0.38 16.26

Note: The company has changed its estimate of depreciation on property, plant and equipment from financial year 2017-18, impact of change is given in

below table:

Particular (X in Million}
Depreciation as per written down value 3.51
Depreciation as per straight line method 1.73
Profit increased by 1.78

4, Intangible assets

(¥ in Million)

. . Computer
Particulars Trade Mark Copyright Software Total
Cost™
Asat 1 April 2016 0.05 1.19 2.22 3.46
Additions 0.14 0.52 0.12 6.78
Deletions - - - -
As at 31 March 2017 0.19 1.71 2.34 4.24
Additions 0.17 - 427 4,44
Deletions - - - -
As at 31 March 2018 0.36 1.71 6.61 8.68
Amortization
Asat 1 April 2016 - - - “
Amortised during the year 0.03 .93 0.54 1.50
Deletions - - - -
As at 31 March 2017 0.03 193 0.54 1.50
Charge for the year 0.06 0.52 0.92 1.50
Delgtions - - - -
As at 31 March 2018 0.09 1,45 1.46 3.00
Net block
As at1 April 2016 0.05 1.19 2.22 3.46
As at 31 March 2017 0.16 0.78 1.80 2.74
AS at 31 March 2018 0.27 0.26 5.15 5.68
~ The Company has availed the deemed cost exemption and used the previous GAAP carrying amount of intangible assets as deemed cost.
Note: Deemed cost as at April 1, 2016 is caleulated as shovn below:
(% in Million)
. . Computer

Particulars Trade Mark Copyright Software Taotal
Gross block 0.12 4. 3.02 7.77
Accumulated amortization m‘l@ (0.07) 44y (0.80) (4.31)
Deemed Cost as at 1 April 2016 gl d A N 0.05 119 222 3.46

i
2
I



Chhaya Prakashani Private Limited
CTN: UG22122WB2006PTC111821
Wotes to financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2018

5. Tinancial assets

54. Investments

(¥ in Million})

31 March 2018

31 March 2017

As at As at As at
31 March 2018 31 March 2017 1 April 2016
" Imvestments at cost
Investments in equity shares (Unquoted)
Investments in subsidiary
1,171 (31 March 2017: 1,171 and 31 March 2016: 1,171) equity shares in Indian Progressive 012 0.12 0.12
Publishing Company Private Limited
5,000 (31 March 2017: 5,000 and 31 March 2016: Nil) equity shares in Publishing Services Private 1.15 1.15 -
Limited .
1.27 1.27 0.12
Investments in Government and Trust securities (Unquoted)
Investment in Tax Free Bonds of Power Finance Corporation 2.13 213 213
2.13 2.13 2.13
Investments at Fair value through profit and loss
Investments in Mutoal Funds (Quoted) ]
Nil (31 March 2017: Nil and 31 March 2016: 506,217) units of Rs. 10 each Kotak Equity Arbitrage - - 10,10
Fund - Dividend Plan )
Nil (31 March 2017: Nil and 31 March 2016: 202,560) units of Rs. 10 each L & T India Value Fund - - - 4.85
Growth
Nil (31 March 2017: Nil and 31 March 2016: 2,522,580) units of Rs. 10 each Reliance Arbitrage - - 29.86
Advantage Fund - Dividend Plan
il (31 March 2017: Wil and 31 March 2016: 72,144) units of Rs. 10 each Sundaram S.M.LL.E. Fund - - 4,60
- Repular Plan Growth '
Nil (31 March 2017: 138,171 and 31 March 2016: Nil) units of Rs.100 each Birla Sun Life Cash - 56.10 -
Manager - Growth -Direct Plan
Nil {31 March 2017; 76,752 and 31 March 2016: Nil) units of Rs.100 each Birla Sun Life Cash - 30,10 -
Manager - Growth -Regular Plan
Nil (31 March 2017: 3,269,594 and 31 March 2016 Nil} units of Rs.10 each Kotak Equity Arbitrage - 65.75 -
Fund - Dividend Plan
693,636 (31 March 2017: Nil and 31 March 2016: Nil) units of’ Rs.10 each Aditya Birla Sun Life 289.63 - -
Mutual Fund Growth-Regular Plan
289.63 151,95 49.41
Total 293.03 155,35 51,66
Aggregate valne of quoted investment 289.63 151.95 49.41
Aggregate value of unqnoted iovestment 3.40 3.49 2.25
Current 289.63 151.95 49.41
Non-Current 3.40 3.40 2.25
. Trade receivables
(¥ in Million})
As at As at As at

1 April 2016

Trade receivables
Unsecured, considered good
Receivable from related parties (refer note 31c)

Less: allowance for expected credit loss
Unsecured, considered good

Doubtful

Total

Current

344.68 200.74 64.94
017 0.50 C -
344.85 201,24 64.94
344,85 201,24 04,94
344.85 201.24 64.94

No trade receivable are dues from director or other officers of the Company either severalty or jointly with any other person.

R
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5C.

TA

7B.

Loans

{Z in Milfion)

31 March 2018

31 March 2017

As at As at Asat
31 March 2018 31 March 2017 1 April 2016
Security deposits - Non-current 192 1.84 1.16
Security deposits - Current - 0.10 0.33
Loan to related parties (refer note 31c) 2.06 1.53 88.68
Advances recoverable in cash or kind 0.97 5.24 5.06
Employee advances 0.16 0.34 0.77
Total 511 9.05 96.00
Current 1.13 5.68 6,16
Non-current 398 3.37 89.84
. Cash and cash equivalents
‘ (% in Million}
As at Asat As af

1 April 2016

Balances with banks

- In current accounts 19.79 18.92 31.81
Casgh in hand 0.59 2.33 2.70
Deposits with original maturity for less than 3 months - 1.13 -
Total 20,38 22,40 34,51
Current 20.38 22,40 34.51
Non-Current - - -
Inventories

(T in Million)
As af As at As at
31 March 2018 31 March 2017 1 April 2016
Raw materials 50.74 26.52 17.41
Semi finished goods 0.75 1.15 7.78
Finished goods 92.94 74,28 71.79
Traded goods - Books 221 7.58 7.31
Total 146.64 109.54 104.29
Current 146.64 109.54 104.29
Other assets
Prepaid expenses
(X in Million
As at As at As at

31 March 2018

31 March 2017

1 April 216

Prepaid expenses (Non current)
Prepaid expenses (Current)
Total

Other assets

0.03 0,04 (.04
0.73 0.76 (.62
0.76 0.80 0.66

(£ in Million)

As at
31 March 2018

As at
31 March 2017

As at
1 April 2016

Unamortized expenses
Gratuity fund (net of provision for gratuity)
Total ’

Current
Non-Current

- - 0.60
0.31 - -
0.31 - 0.60
1.04 0.76 1.22
0.03 0.04 0.04
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8. Deferred taxes

( in Million

31 March 2017 1 April 2016
Ttems leading to creation of deferred fax assets
Fixed assets: impact of differences between tax depreciation and depreciation/ amortization charged 2.04 2.34
in the financiat statements
Others, 0.54 0.71
Total deferred tax assets 2.58 3.05
Ttems lending to creation of deferred tax liabilities
Impact of expenditure charged to the statement of profit and loss account in the current year but 0,14 0.23
allowed for tax purposes on payment basis in subsequent years
Total deferred tax liabilities 0.14 0.23
Net deferrved tax assets/(liabilitics) 2.44 2.82

(This space has been intentionally lefi blank)
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9. Share capital

a. Authorised share capital (equity share of T 100 each)

No. of shares

(X in Million)

As at'l April 2016

Issued during the year
As at 31 March 2017
Tssued during the year
As at 31 March 2018

b. Issued, subseribed and fully paid cquity capital (equity shares of T 100 each)

5,50,000 55.00
5,350,000 55.00
5,50,000 55.00

No. of shares

(T in Million}

As at 1 Apri 2016
Changes during the vear
As at 31 March 2017
Changes during the year
As at 31 March 2018

Terms/ rights attached te equity shares

1,48,284 14.83
1,48,284 14.83
1,48,284 14.83

The Company has only one class of equity shares having & par value of Rs 100 per share. Each holder of equity shares is entitled to one vote per share. The
Company declares and pays dividend in Tndian Rupees. The dividend proposed by the Board of Directors is subject to the approval of the shareholders in the
gnsuing Annual General Meeting. No dividend has been proposed by the Board of Directors during the year ended 31 March 2018 (31 March 2017: Nil). In the
event of liquidation of the Company, the holders of equity shares will be entitled to receive remaining assets of the Company, after distribution of all
preferential amounts. in propertion te their sharehelding.

¢, Shares held by holding company and their subsidiaries
Qut of equity shares issued by the Company, shares held by its holding company and their subsidiaries are as follow:
As at As at
31 March 2018 31 March 2017
8 Chand and Company Limited (Ultimate holding company) 74.00% 74.00%
(30.47% through its wholly subsidiary Eurasia Publishing House Private Limited) ’
d. Details of shareholders helding more than 5% equity shares in the Company:
Name of Shareholders As at 31 March 2018 As af 31 March 2017
fume of Share No of Shares % of holding No of Shares % of holding
S Chand and Company Limited, Ultimate holding company 64,548 43 53% 64,548 43,53%
Furasia Publishing House Private Limited 45,182 3047% 45,182 30,47%
Sumit Biswas 38,554 26,00% 38,554 26.00%
e. Aggregate number of shares issued for consideration other than cash, during the period of five years immediately preceding the reporting date:
As at As at As at
31 March 2018 31 March 2017 1 April 2016
Equity share ailotted pursuant to the Scheme of Arrangement - - 32,659
Equity share allotted pursuant to the taksover of propristorship firm - - 2,500

10, Other equity

(% in Million)

As at
31 March 2018

As at
31 March 2017

General reserve

Balunce at the beginning of the year 30.00 30.00
Increase/ {decrease) the year - -
Balance at the end of the year 30.00 30.00
Security premium aecount

Balance at the beginning of the year 11,31 11.31
Increase/ {decrease) the year - -
Balance at the end of the year 11.31 11.31
Retained earnings

Balance at the beginning of the year 330.64 116.20
Add: Surplus during the year 258.85 214.44
Balance at the end of the year ~ 589,49 330,64
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11.

11A.

118,

12,

13.

14,

15.

Borrowings

Non-current borrowings

(¥ in Million)
As at As at As at
31 March 2018 31 March 2007 1 Aprit 2016
Vehicle lean
Indiar: rupee loan from bank (secured) (refer note 'a’ below) - 0.03 1.72
Total - 0.03 1.72
Less: Current maturities of leng term borrowings (shown in note 13) - {0.03) {1.69)
Net Non-current borrowings - - 0.03
- (L03

Secured -

Vehicle loans have been taken from 1CICI Bank and carry interest @ 9.80% to 14.90%. The loan is repayable in 36 equal monthly instalments. The loan is

secured by hypoethecation of respective vehicles.

Current borrowings

(% in Million}

As at As at As at
31 March 2018 31 March 2017 1 April 2016
Loan from related parties (refer note 31c)
Indian rupee loan from related parties (unsecured) - - 26.05
Total - - 26,05
Secored - - -
Unsecured - - 26,05
Trade payables
(% in Million)
Asgat As at As at
31 March 2018 31 March 2017 1 April 2016
Trade payables of micro enterprises and small enterprises (refer note 32) 16.62 28.37 28.46
Trade payables of related entities (refer note 31¢) 5.13 10.00 4.09
Trade payables other than micro enterprises and small enterprises 120.92 74.01 74,17
Total 142.67 112.38 106.72
Current 142.67 112.38 106.72
Other financial liabilities
(% in Milkion)
As at As at As at
31 March 2018 31 March 2087 T April 2016
Current maturities of long term borrowings . - 0.03 1.69
Interest accrued but not due on borrowings - - 0,01
Total - (.03 1.70
Current - 0,03 1,70
Provisions
(X in Million)
As at As at As at
31 March 2018 31 March 2017 1 April 2016
Provision for gratuity {Non current) - 0.84 0.82
Provision for income tax 18.37 539 5526
Total 18.37 6.23 56.08
Current ' , 18.37 5.39 55.26
MNon current - 0.84 0.82
Other liabilities
(% in Million)
As at Asat Asat
31 March 2018  3f March 2017 1 Aprit 2016
Statutory dues 16.04 9.07 9.76
Advance from customers . 1.31 135 2,52
Total e 17.95 10.42 12.28
Current 17.% 10.42 12.28
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16. Revenue from operations

(¥ in Miflion)

For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2018 31 March 2017

Sale of products

Finished goods 1,186.74 1,025.90
Less: Turnover discount . (27.25) (30.17)
1,159.49 995,73

Other operating revenue
Scrap sales 2.53 061
Total . 1,162.02 996.34

17. Other income

17.1 Finance income
Interest income

- On bonds 0.18 0.18
- On fixed deposits : 0.06 0.04
Total (A) 0.24 0,22

: 17.2 Other income

Dividend received 1.38 2.32
Miscellaneous income 0.25 017
Insurance claim - 0.04
Amount written back 0.01 0.01
Profit on sale of fixed assets (net) 0.24 0.81
Fair value gain on investment 6.85 0.25
Profit on sales of investment (net) 6.67 349
Total (B) 15.40 7.09
Total (A+B) ' 15.64 731

. Cost of raw material consumed
 in Million)

For the year ended TFor the year ended
31 March 2018 31 March 2017

Inventories at the beginning of the year ) 26,52 17.41

Add : Purchases during the year 351,92 248.07
378.44 265,48

Less : Inventories at the end of the year : (50.74) (26.52)
327.70 238,96

Details of raw material purchased
Paper 351.92 248.07
Total . 351.92 248.07

, Purchase of traded goods

(¥ in Milliom)

For the year ended TFor the year ended
31 March 2018 31 March 2017

Traded goods purchases - 1476 12.64
‘ 14.76 12.64
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20. {Increase)/decrease in inventories of finished good and work-in-progress

(% in Million)

For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2018 31 March 2017

Inventories at the end of the year

Finished goeds 9515 81.87
Work in progress 0.75 15
95,90 83.62
Tnventories at the beginning of the year
Finished goods 81.87 79.10
Work in progress 1.15 7.78
83.02 86.88
{Increase)/decrease in inventories (12.88) 3.86
Details of Inventorics at the end of the year (T in Million)

For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2018 31 March 2017

Finished goods
- Manufactured goods

Books 92.54 74.28
Traded goods
Books 221 7.59
95.15 81.87
. Publishing Expenses
(¥ in Million)

For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2018 31 March 2017

Printing and binding charges 14993 138.50
Royalty expenses 73.56 5656
Other publishing expenses 4,11 25,90
Total 227.60 224.96
. Employee benefits expenses
(X in Million)

For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2018 31 March 2017

Salaries, wages and bonus

Contribution to provident and other funds
Gratuity expense (refer note 29)

Staff welfare expenses

Total

. Selling and distribution expenses

89.27 8L.77
324 2,75
0.98 0.63
1,26 1.84

94.75 86.99

(¥ in Million)

For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2018 31 March 2017

Advertisement 36.98 32.54
Business promoticn 9.67 7.34
Freight and forwarding charges 22,04 12,62
Canvassing expenses 19,22 11,65
Tetal §7.91 64.15
. Depreciation and amortisation expenses
(% in Miilion)

For the year ended TFor the vear ended
31 March 2018 31 March 2017

Depreciation of property, plant & equipment
Amortisation of intangible assets
Total

1.73 498

1.50 150
3.23 6.48

1\
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25 Other expenses
(Z in Million)

For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2018 31 March 2017

Communication cost 0.79 093
Rent 13,33 11.33 :
Rates and taxes 0.13 0.85
Insurance ‘ 1.31 135
Travelling & conveyance 0.35 031
Power and fuel 1.3 1.49
Repairs and maintenance

-Others 424 3.18
Printing and stationery . 0.73 1.13
Legal and professional fee : 2.34 576
Payment to auditor (refer details below) 1.42 0.81
Foreign exchange difference - 0.01
Corporate social responsibility expenses (refer note 37) 4.66 -
Sundry balance/bad debts written off .10 0.19
Amalgamation expenses : 0.24 -
Merger & demerger expenses written off - 0,60
Miscellaneous expenses 3.60 4,29
Total ) 34.63 32.23
Payment to auditor (% in Million)

For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2018 31 March 2017

As auditor
- For Statutory audit 1.42 0.81
: 1.42 0.81

. Compenents of Other Comprehensive Income (OCI)
The disaggregation of changes in other comprehensive income by each type of equity is shewn below.

Duaring the year ended 31 March 2018 (% in Milkion)
Particalars Retained earnings Total
Re-measurement gaing/(lesses) on defined benefit plans 0.13 0.13
Tax impact on re-measurement gains/(losses) on defined benefit plans (0.04) (0.04)
0,09 0.09

During the year ended 31 March 2017

Particulars Retained earnings Total
Re-measurement gains/(losses) on defined benefit plans (0.58) (0.58)
Tax impact on re-measurement gains/(losses) on defined benefit plans 0.20 0.20

‘ {0.38) (0.38)

. Earnings per share
Basic EPS amounts are calculated by dividing the profit for the year attributable te equity holders by the weighted average number of Equity shares outstanding during
the year.

Diluted EPS amounts are calculated by dividing the profit for the year attributable to equity holders by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding
during the year plus the weighted average nurber of equity shares that would be issued en conversion of all dilutive potential equity shares info equity shares.

The Follewing reflects the income and share data used in the basic and diluted EP§ computations

(Z in Million)

For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2018 31 March 2017

Profit attributable to equity sharehclders of the Company 258.76 214.82

Weighted average number of equity shares used for computing Earning per Share (Basic & Diluted) 0.15 0,15
Basic EPS 1,725.07 1,432.13
Diluted DPS ’ 1,725.07 1,432.13
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28a. Income taxes

(T in Miltion)

For the year ended For the year ended

31 March 2018

31 March 2057

Income tax charged to statement of profit and Joss
Current income tax chargs
Income tax adjustment related to earlier vear
Deferred tax charge

Income tax charged to other comprehensive income
Expenses (benefit) on re-measurement gain/(loss) on defined benefit plans

28b, Reconciliation of tax expense and the accounting profit multiplied by India’s domestic tax rate for 31 March 2018 and 31 March 2017:

138.33 11531
- 2.68
2.87 0.57
141.20 118.56
{0.04) 0.20
{0.04) 0.20
(2 in Milkion)

For the year ended For the yeur ended

31 March 2018

31 March 2017

Accounting profit before tax

At India's statutory income tax rate of 29.12% (31 March 2017: 33,06%)
Non deductible expenses

Others

Income tax expense reported in the statement of profit and loss

(This space has been intentionally left blank)

399.96 33338
116.47 110.22
1.28 -
23.45 8.34
141.20 118.56
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29. Gratuity and other post- employment benefits plan

Statement of profit & loss account
Net employee benefit expense recognised in employee cost:

The Company has a defined benefit gratuity plan. Under the gratuity plan, Every employee who has completed at least five years of service gets a gratnity on departure at 15
days of last drawn salary for each completed year of service. The scheme is funded with an insurance company in the form of qualifying insurance policy. The following
tables summarize the components of net benefif expense recogrised in the profit and loss account and amounts recognized in the balance sheet for gratuity plan.

(% in Million)

For the year ended

For the year ended

) 31 March 2018 31 March 2017
Cuirent service cost 0.78 0.53
Triterest cost on defined obligation 0.14 0.04
Expected return on plan assets 0.06 0.06
0.98 0.63
Amount recognised in Other Comprehensive Income: (¥ in Million)
For the year ended For the year ended
. 31 March 2018 31 March 2017
Actuarial (gains} / losses on obligation 0.1s 0.60
Actuarial gains / (losses) on assets 0.02 0,02
0.13 0.58
Bualance sheet .
Changes in the present value of the defined henefit obligation are as follows: (% in Miltion)
For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2018 31 March 2017
Opening defined benefit obligation 3.74 2.51
Current service cost 0.78 0.53
Past service cost 0.14 -
Interest cost 0.27 0.20
Benefits paid {0.03) (0.10)
Actuarial (gains) / losses on obligation {0.14) (.60
Closing defined benefit obligation 4,76 3,74
Changes in the fair value of plén assets are as follows: (¥ in Million)
For the year ended For the vear ended
31 March 2018 31 March 2017
QOpening fair value of plan assets 2.88 1.59
Expected retun 0.21 0.13
Contributions by employer 2.00 114
Benefits paid (0.03) {0.10)
Actuarial gain/{loss) (0.02) 0.02
Closing fair value of plane assets 5.04 2.88

The expected contribution for the next annual reporting period is Rs, 0,62 million (31 March 2017: T 0.55 million)

The major categories of plan assets as a percentage of the fair value of tofal plan assets are as follows:

For the year ended
31 March 2018

For the year ended
31 March 2017

Tnvestments with insurer

A The economic and demograghic

100%

ptions nsed in determining gratuity obMigations for the company’s plans are shown below:

100%

For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2018 31 March 2017
Discount rate 7.35% 7.710%
Expected rate of relurn on assets 7.35% 7.70%
Expected rate of salary increase 7.00% 7.00%
Retirement age (in years) 50 50
Mortality Rate 100.00% 100.00%

demand in the employment market.

settled.

The estimates of future salary increases, considered in actuarial valuation, take account of inflation, seniority, promotion and other relevant factors, such as supply and
The cverall expected rate of return on assets is determined based on the market prices prevailing on that date, applicable to the period over which the obligation is to be

The impact of sensitivity analysis due fo changes in the significant actoarial assumptions on the detined benefit obligations is given in below table:

The sensitivity analyses above have been determined based on a method that extrap
assumptions occurring at the end of the reporting year. Pk

Change in For the year ended For the year ended

assumptions 31 March 2018 31 Mareh 2017
Discount rate ' ' + 1% 4.20 3.34
- 1% 5.22 4.20
Expected rate of salary increasc + 1% 541 4.135
- 1% 4,18 372

1e impact on defined benefit cbligatjén as a result of reasonable changes in key
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30, Leases

Operating lease: Company as lessee

The Company has taken premises for office and storage use under cancellsble and non-cancellable operating lease agreements. The total lease rentals rocoognized as an
expensge during the year under the above lease agreaments aggregates to Rs 13.33 Mn (31 March 2017: Rs. 11.33Mn). There are ne restrictions impesed by the lease

agreements, There are no sub leases.
31. Related party disclosure

a, Names of related parties and related party relationship
Related parties where control exists

Helding Company

Fellow Subsidiary Company

Wholly Owned Subsidiary Companies

Related parties with whom transactions have taken place during the year

S Chand and Company Limited (Formerly S Chand and Company
Private Limited)

Vikds Pubﬁshing House Private Limited
New Saraswati House (India) Private Limited
Furasia Publishing House Private Limited

Indian Progressive Publishing Co. Private Limited
Piblishing Services Private Limited

Enterprizes under same control

Key management personnel

(This space has beent inrentionally lefi blank)

Easy Note Stationery Private Limited (Formerly Chhaya Stationeries
Private Limited)
Chhaya Assets Private Limited

Himanshu Gupta (Director)

Sumit Biswas (Director)

Sanjay Vijay Bhandarkar (Independent Director w.e.f 7 Dec 2016)
Atul Nischal (Tndependent Director w.e.f 7 Dec 2016)

Sanir Khurana (Directer)

Dinesh Kemar Thunjhnuwala {Director)
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b. Related party transactions

The following table provides the total amount of transactions that have been entered into with related parties during the year:

{¥ in Milliun}
Enterprises where :‘;;;:]2:;‘::‘:;‘1[:;:11:;5 Key Management
Nature of Transactions FPeriod . . . Personnel & their Total
: Control exists their relatives are able to .
s s . relatives
exercise significant influence
INCOME
Sales
Fasy Note Stationery Private Limited 31 March 2018 - 018 - 0.18
31 March 2017 - 0.54 - 0,54
EXPENSES
Books/Paper Purchases
Indian Progressive Publishing Co. Private Limited 31 March 2018 14,76 - B 14.76
31 March 2017 10.64 - - 10.64
Vikas Publishing Houze Private Limited 31 March 2018 - 043 - 043
31 March 2017 - 2.00 - 2.00
Contract Job Charges
Vikas Publishing House Private Limited 31 March 2018 - 1.53 - 153
31 March 2017 - 18.02 - 18.02
Director Remuneration
Sumit Biswas 31 March 2018 - - 9.00 9.00
31 March 2017 - - 9.00 9.00
Shalini Biswas 31 March 2018 - - - -
31 March 2017 - - 492 4.92
Director Sitting Fees
Sanjay Vijay Bhandarkar 31 March 2018 - - 023 023
31 March 2017 - - 0.05 | 0.05
Atul Nischal 31 March 2018 - - 025 0.25
31 March 2017 - - 0.05 0.05
Staff Welfare .
New Saraswat! House (Tndia) Private Limited 31 March 2018 - 011 - 01l
31 March 2017 - 0.21 - 0.21
Office Rent
Swuit Biswas 31 March 2018 - - 0.60 0.60
31 March 2017 - - G.15 0.15
Shalinf Biswas 31 March 2018 - - - -
31 March 2017 - - 045 043
Noyanika Biswas 31 March 2018 - - 0.72 0,72
31 March 2017 - - 892 0.72
Composing Charges
Publishing Services Private Limited 31 March 2018 15.82 - - 15,82
31 March 2017 2025 - - 20.25
c. Balances outstanding at the Year end (¥ in Millien)
Tnterprises over which Ke;
Enterprises where FMnatna;ens:eit‘l;er:sonnei ans Key Management
Nature of Transactions Peried o . \ Personmel & their Total
Coniraol exists their relatives are able to .
e B relatives
exercise significant influence
Unsecured Loans
Sumit Biswas 31 March 2018 - - - -
31 Mareh 2017 - - - -
1 April 2016 - - 24.35 24.85
Shalini Biswas 31 March 2018 - - - -
31 March 2017 - - - -
1 April 2016 - - 1.50 1.50
Trade payables
Vikas Publishing House Private Limited 31 March 2018 - 070 0.70
31 March 2017 - .86 “ 8.86
1 Aprl 2016 - - - -
Indian Progressive Publishing Co. Private Limited 31 March 2018 443 - - 4,43
31 March 2017 1.14 - - 1.14
1 April 2016 4.0% - - 4.09
Other Liabilities
Sumit Biswas 31 March 2018 - - - -
31 March 2017 - - - -
1 Aprl 2016 - - 1.26 1.26
Trade Receivables
Easy Note Stationery Private Limited 31 March 2018 - 0.17 - 0.17
31 March 2017 - 0.50 - 0.50
1 April 2016 - - - -
Others
Publishing Services Private Limited 31 March 2018 2.06 - - 2.06
31 March 2017 1,33 - - 1.53
1 Aprdl 2016 536 - - 536
Chhaya Assets Private Limited 31 March 2018 - - - -
31 March 2017 - - - -
1 April 2016 8333 < - 83.33
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32,

33

34,

35

36

37,

38,

Details of dues to micre, small and medium enterprises as defined under the MSMED Act, 2006
(% in Million)

31 March 2018 31 March 2017 1 April 2016
The principal amount and the interest due thereon (to be shown separately) remaining unpaid to any supplicr as at the end of
each accounting year
- Principal emount dus te micre and small enterprises 16.62 28.37 2846
- Interest due on above - - 0.02
16.62 28.37 Z8.48

The amount of interest paid by the buyer in terms of section 16 of the MSMED Act 2006 along with the amounts of the - - -
payment made to the supplier beyond the appointed day during each accounting year. '

The amount of interest due and payable for the perod of defay in making payment {which have been paid but beyend the - - -
appointed day during the year) but without adding the interest specified under the MSMED Act 2006,

The amount of firther interest remaining due and payable even in the sucteeding years, until such date when the interest dues as - - -
ahove ark actually paid to the small enterprise for the purpose of dlsallowance as a deductible expenditure under section 23 of

the MSMED Act 2006

Expenditurg in foreign currency (accrial basis)
(T in Million)

31 March 2018 31 March 2017

Selling and distribution 1.80 -
Royalty expenses 0.02 -
142 -

Tmported and indigene nous raw materials consumed

Raw Materials Amount Indigenously obtnined

i Percentage (%) (T in Million} Percentage (%) (T in Million)
Asat31 March 2018 - . - - -
As at 31 March 2017 106% 321 100% 238.96

Segment reporting

Ind AS 108 establishes standards for the way that companies report information about operating segments and refated disclosures about products and services and major customers. The Company’s operations pre.
dorninantly relate to publishing of books. The Chief Operating Decision Maker (CODM) evaluates the Company’s performance and allocates resources based on analysis of various performance indicators
pertaining to business as a single segment. Aecordingly, the amounts appearing in the financial statements relate to the Company’s sinple business segment,

Cnntingcn.t liabilities
The Compamy does not have any contingent liabifity as at 31st March 2018 (31st March 2017: Nil and | April 2016: Nily
Corporate Secial Responsibility {CSR)

The Company has contributed T 4.66 Mn (31 March 2017: T Nil) out of the total contributable amount of T 6.51 Mn (31 March 2017: T 4.66 Mn) as of 31 March 2018 in accordance with section 135 read with
schedule VIT to the Companies Act, 2013 to a society involved in promoting education, including special education and employment enhancement vocational skill specially among children and students. Unspent
amount has not been provided in books.

Financial Instruments!- Finstncial risk management objectives and policies
The Compeny’s principal financial liabilities trade and other payables. The main purpose of these financial liabilitles is to finance the Company’s operations. The Company’s principal financial assets include
investments in equity shares, mutual fund and government securities, advances to related party, trade and other receivables, security deposits, cash and short-term deposits that derive directly from its operations.

The Company is exposed to market tisk, eredit risk and liquidity risk. The Company’s senior management oversees the management of these risks and advises on financial risks and the appropriate financiai risk
govermance framework for the Cempany. The board provides assurance to the shareholders that the Company’s financtal risk activities are governed by approprate policies and procedures and that financial tisks
are identified, measured and managed in accordance with the Company’s policies and risk objectives, The Board of Directors reviews and agrees policies for managing each of these risks, which are summarised
below.

. Market risk .

Market xisk is the risk that the fair value of fisture cash flows of a financial instrument will fluciuate because of changes in market prices.
Market risk comprises twa Lypes of risk:-

a.) Imterest rate risk, and

b.) commadity risk

Tinancial instruments affected by market risk include loans and borrowings, investments. denosits, advances and derivative financial instruments.

The sensittvity analyses in the following sections relate to the position as at 31 March 2018 and 31 March 2017,

The sensitivity analyses have been prepared on the basis that the amount of net debt, the ratio of floating to fixed interest rates of the debt and derivatives and the proportion of financial instruments In forelgn
currencies are all constant in place at 31 March 2018.

The analyses exclude the impact of movements in market variables on: the carrying values of gratuity and other post-retirement obligations; previsions. The sensitivity of the relevant profit or loss item s the sffect
of the assumed chanues in respective market risks.

Interest rate rish.

Tnterest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or fitture cash flows of a financial instrument will fuctuate because of changes in market interest rates. The Company’s exposure to the risk of changes in market
Interest rates relates primarily to the Company’s long-term debt obligations with fixed interest rates. The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to & reasonably possible change in interest rates en that portion
of loans and berrowings affected, after the impact of hedge accounting, With all other variables held constant, the Company’s profit before tax is affected through the impact on floaling rate borrowings, as
follows:

Tncrease/ Effect on Effert
deerease in profit on equity
basis points Dbefore tax {0
As at 3[ March 2018
Borrowings +0.5% - -
-{.5% - -
Ag at 31 March 2017
Borrowings +H.5% - -
-0.5% - -
As a1 T April 2016 :
Borrowings +0.5% L 0.01 -
“0.5% | (0.01) N

. 2
o \\;\\
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B.

]

39.

Credit Risk

Credit tisk s the risk that counterparty will not meet its obligations under & financial instrument or customer contract, leading to a financial loss, The Company is not exposed to
any significant credit risk from its operating activities (primarily trade receivables), including deposits with banks and financial institutions, foreign exchange transactions and
other financial instruments. ’ !

The Ageing analysis of trade receivables (net) as of the reporting date is as follows:

(% in Million)
Age Brachet Not Due {-215 Days 216-365 Days 365-730 Days  More than 730 Days Total
Asat I April 2016 64.78 0.16 - - - 64.54
As at 31 March 2017 196.47 477 - : - - 201.24
Asat 31 March 2018 308.62 36.23 - - - 344.85

. Liquidity Risk

Liquidity tisk is the risk that the Company will not be able to meet its financial obligations as they become due. The Cornpany monitors their risk of shertage of funds using cash
flow forecasting models, These models consider the maturity of their financial investments, committed funding and projected cash flows fiom operations, The Company’s
objective is to provide financial resources to meet its business objectives in a timely, cost effective and reliable manner.

The Company's principal sources of liquidity are cash and cash equivalents and the cash flow that is generated from operations, The Company has no outstanding bank
borrowings. The Company believes that the working capital is sufficient to mect its current requirements. Accordingly, no liquidity risk is perceived.
(¥ in Million)

As at As at Asat
March 31. 2018  March 31,2017 April 1, 2016

Less than | year

- Borrowings - - 0.03
- Trade payables 142.67 112.38 106.72
- Other finaneial Habilities - 0,03 1.70

142.67 112,41 108.45

Capital management

For the purpose of the Company’s capital menagement, capital includes ssued equity capital and all other equity reserves attributable to the equity helders of the Company. The
primary chjective of the Company’s capital management is to maximise the shareholder value.

The Company’s policy is to maintain a strong capital base so as to maintdin investor, ereditor and market confidence and to sustain fitture development of the business. The
Board of Directors moniter the return on capital employed as well as the level of dividend to shareholders.

No changes were made in the objectives, policies or processes for managing capital during the year ended 31 March 2018 and 31 March 2017,

(This space has been intentionally left blank)
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40, Fair value of financial assets and liabitities

Set out below, is a comparison by class of the carrying amounts and fair value of the company’s financials instruments, other than those with carrying amaunts that are reasonabie approximations of fair values:

(Z in Million}

Particulars 31 March 2018 31 March 2017 1 April 2016 .

: ’ FVTPL Amortized cost FVTOCI FVTEL Amortized cost FVTOCH FVTPL Amortized rost FYTOCL
Assets
Non current financial assets
- Investments - 3.40 - - 3.40 - - 225 -
- Loans - 398 - - 3.37 - - 89.84 -
Current finuncial assets
- Investmeiits 289.63 - 15193 - - 4541 - -
- Trade receivables - 344.85 - - 201,24 - - 64,94 -
- Leans - 1.13 - - 568 - - 616 -
- Cash and cash equivalents - 20.38 - - 22,40 - - 34.51 -
- Other financial assets - - - - - - - - -
Linbilities
Non-current financial linbilities
- Borrowings - - - - - - - 0.03 -
Current financial labilities
- Barrowitigs - - - - - - - 26,05 -
- Trade payables - 142.67 - . - 11238 - - 106,72 -
- Other financiat liabilities - - - - 0.03 - - 170 -

The fallowing assumptions/ methods were used ta estimate the fair values;

i.) The fair values of trade receivables, cash and cash equivalents, ofher current financial assets, irade payable and other current financial liabilities are considered to be same as their carrying values dug to their shart term nature.

ii,) Fair vafue of quoted financial instruments is based on quoted market price at the reporting date.

iii.} The carrying amount of other items carried at amortized cost are reasonable approximation of their fair value,

iv.} The Company classiftes alf its financial assets and financial linbilities to be measured at amortised cost. Hence the Company has not classified its financial instruments into three levels of fair value measurements hierarchy in
accordanee with the relevant Indian Accounting Standard. . '

(This space has been buentionally left blanl)
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41 Significant aceounting judgements, estimates and assumptions

The preparation of the Company’s financial statements in conformify with the [ndian Accountmg Standards requires management to make judgements,
estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities, and the accompanying disclosures {including contingent
liabilities). The management believes that the estimates used in preparation of the financial statements are prudent and reasonable, Uncertainty about these
assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes that require a material adjustment to the carrying amount of assets or liabilities affected in future periods.

Judgements
In the process of applying the Company’s accounting policies, management has made the following judgements, which have the most significant effect on the
amouznts recognised in the financial statements:

Operating lease commitments — Company as a lessee

The Company has entered into lease agreements with lessor and has determined, based on an evaluation of the terms and conditions of the arrangements, such
as the lease term not constituting a major part of the economic life of the commercial property and the fair value of the asset, that it does not retains the
significant risks and rewards of ownership of these properties and accounts for the contracts as operating leases.

Estimates and assumptions

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the reporting date, that have a significant risk of causing a
material adjustment fo the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year, are described below. The Company based its assurnptions and
estimates on parameters available when the financial statements were prepared. Existing circumstances and assumptions about future developments, however,
may change due to market changes or circumstances arising that are beyond the control of the Company. Such changes are reflected in the assumptions when
they occur. Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewad on an ongoing basis, Revisiong to accounting estimates are recognised prospectively.

Taxes

Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent it is probable that taxable profits will be available against which the losses can be utilised. Significant
management judgement is required to determine the amount of deferred tax assets that can be recognised, based upon the likely timing and the level of future
taxable profits together with future tax planning strategics.

Defined benefit plans (gratuity)

The cost of the defined benefit gratuity plan and the present value of the gratuity obligation are determined vusing actuarial valuations. An actuarial valuation
involves making various assumptions that may differ from actual developments in the future. These include the defermination of the discount rate, future salary
increases and mortality rates. Due to the complexities involved in the valuation and its long-term nature, a defined benefit obligation is highly sensitive to
changes in these assumptions. All assumptions are reviewed at each reporting date.

The parameter most subject to change is the discount rate. In determining the appropriate discount rate, the management considers the interest rates of
government bonds with term that correspond with the expected term of the defined benefit obligation.

The mortality rate is based on publicly available mortality tables. Those mortality tables tend fo change only at interval in response to demographic changes.
Future salary increases and gratuity increases are based on expected future inflation rates for the respective countrics.

Further details about gratuity obligations are given in Note 29

Provision for decommissioning
In measuring the provision for site restoration obligation, thc Company uses the technical estimates to determine the expected cost of dismantling and removing
the improvement or infrastructure for properties under lease. Discount rate are determined based on the government bond rate of a similar period as the liability,

Provision for trade receivable

Trade receivebles do not carry any interest and are stated at their nominal value as reduced by appropriate allowances for estimated irrecoyerable amotnts.
Estimated irrecoverable amounts are based on the ageing of the receivable balances and histerical experience adjusted for forward-looking estimates. Individual
trade receivables are written off when manasement deems them not to be collectible. For details of allowance for doubtiful debts please refer Note 5B.

Impairment of non-financial asscts
The carrying amounts of the Company’s non-financial assets, other than deferred tax assets, are reviewed at the end of each reporting period to determine
o whether there is any indication of {mpairment, If any such indication exists, then the asset’s recoverable amount is estimated.

The recoverable amount of an asset or cash-generating unit (‘CGU”) is the greater of its value in use and its fair value less costs to seil. [n assessing value in use,
the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of
money and the rigks specific to the asset or CGU. ¥or the purpose of impairment testing, assets that cannot be tested individually are grouped together into the
L smallest group of assets that generates cash inflows from continuing use that are largely independent of the cash inflows of other assets or groups of assets
(‘CGU).

Market related information and estimates are used to determine the recoverable amount. Key assumptions on which management has based its determination of
recoverable amount include estimated long term growth rates, weighted average cost of capital and estimated operating matgins. Cash flow projections take into
account past experience and represent management’s best estimate about fulure developments,

o
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42,

i}

a.)

b.

e

i)

First-time adoeption of Ind AS

These financial statements, for the year ended 31 March 2018, are the first the Company has prepared in accordance with Ind AS. For periods up to and
including the year ended 31 March 2017, the Company prepared its financial statements in accordance with accounting standards notified under section
133 of the Companies Act 2013, read together with paragraph 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 (Previous GAAP). Accordingly, the Company
has prepared financial statements which comply with Ind AS applicable for periods ending on 31 March 2018, together with the comparative period data as
at and for the year ended 3t Mareh 2017, as described in the summary of significant accounting policies. In preparing thess financial statements, the
Company’s opening balance sheet was prepared as at | April 2016, the Company’s date of transition to Ind AS.

This note explains exemptions availed by the Company in restating its Previous GAAP financial statements, including the balance sheet as at 1 April 2016
and the financial statements as at and for the vear ended 31 March 2017.

Optional Exemptions Applied:
Ind AS 101 allows first-time adopters certain exemptions from the retrospective application of certain requirements under [nd AS. The Company has
applied the following exemptions,

Deemed cost of Property, plant and cquipment and Infangible assets

Ind AS 101 permits a first-time adopter, where there is no change in functional currency, to elect to continue with the carrying vatue for zll of its property,
plant and equipment as recognised in the financial statements as at the date of transition to Tnd AS, measured as per the previous GAAP and use that as its
deemed cost as at the date of transition after making necessary adjustments for de-commissioning liabilities, This exemption can also be used for intangible
assets covered by Ind AS 38 Intangible Assets. -

Accordingly, the company has elected to measure all of its property, plant and equipment and intangible assets at their previous GAAP carrying value.

Investments in subsidiaries®*
As per the requitements of Ind AS 27, company has opted to record its investment in subsidiary at cost. Ind AS 101 provides that while measuring
inyestment at cost, an entity shall measure that investment at one of the following amounts in its separate opening Ind AS Balance Sheet:
(i} cost determined in accordance with Ind AS 27; or
(ii} deemed cost. The deemed cost of such an investment shall be its:-
(a) fair value at the entity’s date of transition to Ind ASs in its separate financial statements; or
(b} previous GAAP carrying amount at that date.
Accordingly, company has opted to record its investment in subsidiary at previcus GAAP carrying amount at transition date.
(*Investment in subsidiaries includes investment in subsidiary of holding company)

Reconcilintions

Fellowing reconciliations along with foot notes for the GAAP adjustments is ingerted:

- Reconciliation of equity as at 1 April 2016 (the date of transition to [nd AS) (Annexure I}
- Reconciliation of equity as at 31 March 2017 (Anuexnre Iia)

- Reconeiliation of profit and loss for year ended 31 March 2017 {Annexure TIh)

(This space has been intentionally left blark)
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CIN: U22122WB2006PTC111821
Notes to financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2018

Annexure I - Reconciliation of equity as at 1 April 2016 (the date of transition te Ind AS)

(¥ in Million)

Footnotes  Tndian GAAP+ | [BIAS Tnd AS
Adjustment

Assets

Non-current assets

Property, plant and equipment 16.26 - 16.26

Intangible assets 346 - 346

Financial assets

- [nvestments 1 225 - 225

~ Loans 2 90.23 {0.39) 89.84

Other non-current assets 2 - 0.04 0.04

Deferred tax assets (net) 4 211 0.71 2.82

Total non-current assets 114.31 0.36 114.67

Current assets

Inventories 104.29 - 104.29

Financial assets .

- Investments 1 50.11 (0.70) 49 41

- Trade receivables 64.94 - 6494

- Loans 2 5.83 0.33 6.16

- Cask and cash equivalents 34.51 - 34,51

Other current assets 1.19 0.03 1.22
|i-?T'| Total current assets 260.87 {0,34) 260.53
A Total assets 375.18 - 0.02 375.20

Lquity and liabilities

Equity

Hquity share capital 14.83 - 14.83

Other equity

- Retained earnings 116,32 (0.,12) 116.20

- Other reserves 41.31 - 4131

Total equity 172.46 {0.12) 172.34

Non-current liabilities

Financial liabilities

-~ Borrowings 0.03 - 0.03

Provisions . 0.68 0.14 0.82

Deferred tax liabilities{net) - - -

Total non current liabilities 0.71 0.14 0.85

Current liabilities

Financial liabilities

- Borrowings 26.05 - 26.05

- Trade payables 106.72 - 106.72

- Other financial liabitities 1.70 - 1.70

Provisions 5526 - 55.26
vl Other current liabilities 12,28 - 12.28

Tetal current liabilities 262.01 - 202.01

Taotal equity and liabilities 375.18 0.02 375.20

(*Indian Gaap numbers have been regrouped to conform to classifications as per Ind AS}




Chhaya Prakashani Private Limited
CIN: U22122WB2006PTC111821
Notes to financial statements for the yvear ended 31 March 2018

Annexure ITa - Reconciliation of equity as at 31 March 2017

(T in Million)

Ind AS

Foot notes Indian GAAP* Adjustment Ind AS

Assets
Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment 10,45 - 10.45
Tntangible assefs 274 - 2,74
Intangible assets under development 1.83 - 1.83
Financial assets
- Investments 1 340 - 3.40
~ Loans 2 353 (0.16) 337
- Other financial assets - - -
Other non-current assets 2 - 0.04 0.04
Deferred tax assets (net) 4 1.90 0.54 244
Total non-current assets 23.85 0.42 24,27
Current assets
Inventories 98.15 11.39 109.54
Financial assets
- Investments i 151.70 0.25 151.95
~ Trade receivables 212.63 (11.39) 201.24
- Loans 2 558 0.10 5.68
- Cash and cash equivalents 22.40 - 22.40
Other current assets 2 0.74 0.02 0.76
Total carrent assets 491.20 0.37 491,57
Total assets 515.05 0,79 515.84
Equity and liabilitics
Eqnity
Equity share capital 14.83 - 14.83
Other equity -
- Retained earnings 330.28 0.36 330.64
- Other reserves 41.31 - 41.31
Total equity 386.42 0.36 386,78
Nen-current liabilities

Financial liabilities
Provisions 0.41 0.43 0.84
Total non carrent liabifities 0.41 0.43 0.84 .
Current liabilities
Financial liabilities

- Trade pavables 112.38 - 112.38
- Other financial liabilities (.03 - 0,03
Provisions 5.39 - 5.39
Other current liabilities 1042 - 10.42
Total current liabilities 128.22 - 128.22
Total equity and liabilities 515.05 0.79 515.84
(*Indian Gaap numbers have been regrouped to conform to elassifications as per Ind AS) .
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Chhaya Prulcishani Private Limited
CIN: U22122WRB2006PTC111821
Notes to finaneial statensents for the year ended 31 March 2018

Annexure EHb - Reconciliation of profit and less for year ended 31 March 2017

(T in Millien)
Foot notes Indian GAAP I.nd AS Ind AS
Adjustment
I Revenue from Coperations 1,007.73 (11.39) | 996,34
11 Other income 1,2 6.33 0,98 7.31
I Total Income (I+) 1,014.06 (10.41) 1,003,645
IV Expenses
Cost of raw material consumed 238.96 - 238.96
Purchase of traded goods 12.64 - 12,64
(Increase)/decrease in inventories of finished goods and work in progress 15.25 (11.39) 3,86
Publication expenses 224,96 - 224.96
Employee benefits expense 3 87.27 (0.28) 86.99
Selting and distribution expenses 64,15 - 64.15
Finance cost - - -
Deprociation and smortsation expense 6.48 - 6.48
Other expenses 2 32.20 0,03 32.23
Total expenses 681,51 {11.64) 670.27
V Profit before tax (I1I-IV) 332.15 1,23 333.38
¥1 Tax expense:
Current tax 11531 - 115.31
Income tax adjustment related to carlier yoars 2.68 - 2.68
Deferred tax (credit)/ charge ' g.21 0.36 ¢.57
Total tax expenses 118.20 0.36 118.56
VI Profit for the year 213.95 0,87 214.82
V1Il Other Comprehensive Income
- [tems that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
Re-measurement gains/(losses) on defined benefit plans - (0.58) (0.58)
“T'ax impact on re-measurement gains/(losses) on defined benefit plans - 0.20 0.20
IX Total Comprehensive Income for the period (V + VI) 113,95 0.4% 214.44

Footnotes to the reconcilintion of equity as at 1 April 2016 and 31 March 2017 and protit or loss for the year ended 31 March 2017 are as below:-
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Investments

Under previous GAAP, current investinents were measured at lower of Cost or fair value. Under Ind AS these financials assets arc classified as FVTPL and the changes
in fair vatue are recognised in statement of profit and loss. On the transition date, these financial assets have been measured at their fair value which is higher than its
cost as per previous GAAP, resulting in an increass/decrease in carrying value of the investiments with corresponding increase/decrease being recognised in equity.

Non current financial assets/ financial liabilities

Under previous GAAP, certaln non-¢lurent financial assets/ Habilities which were measured at cost/ best estimate of the expenditure reguired to settle the obligation, at
the balance sheet date without considering the effect of discounting where as these are measured at the present value on the balance sheet date under Ind AS.
Accordingly the Company has recognised the adjustments to the respective canying amount and the consequent impact on finance cost/ finance income due to
unwinding of the discounting impact. [he corresponding impact on the date of transition has been recogniszd in equity.

Re-measurement differcaces

Under previous GAAP, there was no concept of other comprehensive income and hence, previous GAAP profit is reconciled to total comprehensive income as per Ind
AS. Under previous GAAP, the re-measurement of the net defined benefit liability were recognised in the statement of profit and loss however under Ind AS, said re-
measurement differences net of the related tax impact are recognised in the other comprehensive incomes,

Revenue recognition
Under previous GAAP, rebate and discount were shown as an expense. Under IndAS, revenue is measured at fair value of the consideration received or receivable
taking into account the amount of any trade discount and volume rebate allowed by the entity,

Deferred tax
Under Ind AS, the Company has recognised the consequential tax implications on the impact on account of adjustments explained above.

The Board of Directors in their meeting dated November 11, 2017 approved the merger of Publishing Services Private Limited with the Company, the company is fully
owned subsidiary of Holding Company. The Company has filed an application with Registrar of Companies dated December 12, 2017 under section 233 of Companies
Act, 2013 for merper of the aforesaid Company and waiting for approval.

Previgus year figures have been audited by a firm ofher than 5.R.Batlibo! & Associates LLP and kave been regrouped and rearranged wherever necessary to conform to
current year's classification.

The accompanying notes are an integgal part of the financial statements.
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